
Staff Contact Nick Kimball, City Manager 

-u 

CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 

 CITY COUNCIL 

AND SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE  

SAN FERNANDO REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA SUMMARY 

MONDAY, MARCH 20, 2023 - 6:00 PM 

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

117 MACNEIL STREET 

SAN FERNANDO, CALIFORNIA 91340 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OPTIONS 

WATCH THE MEETING 

Live stream with audio and video, via YouTube Live, at: 

https://www.youtube.com/c/CityOfSanFernando 

Note:  Comments submitted via YouTube will not be read into the record.  

SUBMIT PUBLIC COMMENT IN PERSON 

Members of the public may provide comments in person in the City Council Chambers during the Public 
Comments section of the Agenda by submitting a comment card to the City Clerk.   

SUBMIT PUBLIC COMMENT VIA EMAIL 

Members of the public may submit comments by email to cityclerk@sfcity.org no later than 
5:00 p.m. the day of the meeting, to ensure distribution to the City Council prior to consideration 
of the agenda.  Comments received via email will be distributed to the City Council, read into the 
record, limited to three minutes, and made part of the official public record of the meeting. 

CALL-IN TO PROVIDE PUBLIC COMMENT LIVE AT THE MEETING 

Members of the public may call-in between 6:00 p.m. and 6:15 p.m.  Comments will be heard in 
the order received, and limited to three minutes.  If necessary, the call-in period may be extended 
by the Mayor.  Note: This is audio only and no video. 

Call-in Telephone Number: (669) 900-6833 
Meeting ID:  833 6022 0211 

Passcode:  924965 

When connecting to the Zoom meeting to speak, you will be placed in a virtual “waiting area,” 
with your audio disabled, until it is your turn to speak and limited to three minutes. 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 1 of 137

https://www.youtube.com/c/CityOfSanFernando
mailto:cityclerk@sfcity.org


SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
Regular Meeting Notice and Agenda – March 20, 2023 
Page 2 of 5

CALL TO ORDER 

CLOSED SESSION REPORT 

ROLL CALL 

TELECONFERENCING REQUESTS/DISCLOSURE 

Recommend consideration of requests received for remote teleconference meeting participation 
made by members of the City’s legislative bodies, as permitted under the provisions of Assembly 
Bill (AB) 2449, Government Code Section 54953, and the City of San Fernando adopted Resolution 
No. 8215, effective March 1, 2023. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Led by City Clerk Julia Fritz 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Recommend that the City Council approve the agenda as presented and move that all ordinances 
presented tonight be read in title only as authorized under Government Code Section 36934.  

PRESENTATION 

A. INTRODUCTION OF NEW CITY OF SAN FERNANDO EMPLOYEES

B. PRESENTATION OF EDUCATION COMMISSION CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION FOR MARCH
STUDENTS OF THE MONTH

● Alison Cueva (PUC Nueva Esparanza Charter Academy)
● Ashley Sanchez (Social Justice Humanitas Academy)

Education Commissioner Vice Chair David Govea 

C. PRESENTATION OF CERTIFICATES OF APPRECIATION TO THE FOUNDERS OF THE OUTDOOR
MARKET AND SAN FERNANDO MALL ASSOCIATION FOR ESTABLISHING THE OUTDOOR MARKET

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 2 of 137



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
Regular Meeting Notice and Agenda – March 20, 2023 
Page 3 of 5

DECORUM AND ORDER 

The City Council, elected by the public, must be free to discuss issues confronting the City in an 
orderly environment.  Members of the public attending City Council meetings shall observe the 
same rules of order and decorum applicable to the City Council (SF Procedural Manual). Any person 
making impertinent derogatory or slanderous remarks or who becomes boisterous while 
addressing the City Council or while attending the City Council meeting, may be removed from the 
room if the Presiding Officer so directs the sergeant-at-arms and such person may be barred from 
further audience before the City Council. 

PUBLIC STATEMENTS 

Members of the public may provide comments in person in the City Council Chambers during the 
Public Comments section of the Agenda by submitting a comment card to the City Clerk. 

Members of the public may submit comments by email to cityclerk@sfcity.org no later than 
5:00 p.m. the day of the meeting to ensure distribution to the City Council and read into the record. 

Members of the public may provide a live public comment by calling in between 6:00 p.m. and 
6:15 p.m.  CALL-IN INFORMATION:  Telephone Number: (669) 900-6833; Meeting ID: 833 6022 
0211; Passcode: 924965  

CONSENT CALENDAR 

Items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and may be disposed of by a single motion 
to adopt staff recommendation. If the City Council wishes to discuss any item, it should first be 
removed from the Consent Calendar. 

1) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES:

a. June 7, 2021 – Regular Meeting d. March 21, 2022 – Regular Meeting
b. June 21, 2021 – Regular Meeting e. March 6, 2023 – Special Meeting
c. February 22, 2022 – Regular Meeting f. March 6, 2023 – Regular Meeting

2) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE WARRANT REGISTER

Recommend that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 23-032 approving the Warrant
Register.

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 3 of 137

mailto:cityclerk@sfcity.org


SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
Regular Meeting Notice and Agenda – March 20, 2023 
Page 4 of 5

 

 

3) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION APPOINTING THE CITY MANAGER, POLICE 
CHIEF AND DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS AS THE CITY’S DESIGNATED AUTHORIZED AGENTS 
TO THE GOVERNOR’S OFFICE OF EMERGENCY SERVICES FOR ALL MATTERS PERTAINING TO 
REQUESTS FOR STATE DISASTER ASSISTANCE FUNDS 

 
Recommend that the City Council: 

 

a. Adopt Resolution No. 8222 appointing the City Manager, Police Chief, and Director of 
Public Works as the City’s Designated Authorized Agents when requesting disaster relief 
funds from the Federal Emergency Management Agency or California Office of Emergency 
Services; and 
 

b. Authorize the City Manager to execute all related documents.  
 

 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
4) A PUBLIC HEARING TO DETERMINE IF ANY NON-PROFIT AGENCIES ARE READILY AVAILABLE 

TO PROVIDE FIXED-ROUTE TRANSIT SERVICES WITHIN THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
 
Recommend that the City Council: 
 
a. Conduct a public hearing to receive public comment and to determine whether any 

private non-profit agencies are readily available to provide fixed-route transit services 
within the City; and 

 

b. Pending public testimony, adopt Resolution No. 8221 certifying there are no non-profit 
agencies readily available to provide fixed-route transit services within the City.  

 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS 
 
5) CONSIDERATION AND DISCUSSION TO RECEIVE AND FILE THE GENERAL PLAN HOUSING 

ELEMENT ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2022 AND TO AUTHORIZE 
STAFF TO SUBMIT SAID REPORT TO THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND THE GOVERNOR’S OFFICE OF PLANNING AND RESEARCH 

 
Recommend that the City Council: 
 

a. Receive and file the General Plan Housing Element Annual Progress Report for Calendar 
Year 2022; and  
 

b. Authorize staff to submit the Housing Element Annual Progress Report to the California 
Department of Housing and Community Development and the Governor’s Office of 
Planning and Research. 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 4 of 137



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
Regular Meeting Notice and Agenda – March 20, 2023 
Page 5 of 5

 

 

6) DISCUSSION ON THE WATER FUND BALANCE AND CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A 
RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING FUNDS FROM THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA FOR USE ON 
WATER TREATMENT PROJECTS  
 

Recommend that the City Council: 
 

a. Review and discuss the Water Fund Balance;  

b. Adopt Resolution No. 8223 appropriating $7,000,000 in funds for use on water treatment 
projects at extraction Well Nos. 2A and 3; and  

c. Provide direction to staff regarding gap funding for the Well Nos. 2A and 3 treatments 
projects. 

 
STAFF COMMUNICATION INCLUDING COMMISSION UPDATES 
 
 
GENERAL CITY COUNCIL/BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS AND LIAISON UPDATES 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT   The meeting will adjourn to its next regular meeting. 
 

I hereby certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing 
agenda was posted on the City Hall bulletin board not less than 72 hours prior to the meeting.  
 

 

________________________________________ 
Julia Fritz, CMC 
City Clerk 
Signed and Posted: March 16, 2023 (5:00 p.m.)  

The Regular Meetings of the City Council of the City of San Fernando also serves as concurrent Regular Meetings of the Successor Agency to the 
San Fernando Redevelopment Agency and will be identified as (SA) following the item, and, from time to time, such other bodies of the City 
composed exclusive of the Members of the City Council.    
 

Agendas and complete Agenda Packets (including staff reports and exhibits related to each item) are posted on the City’s `Internet website 
www.sfcity.org.  These are also available for public reviewing prior to a meeting in the City Clerk Department. Any public writings distributed by 
the City Council to at least a majority of the Councilmembers regarding any item on this regular meeting agenda will also be made available at 
the City Clerk Department at City Hall located at 117 Macneil Street, San Fernando, CA, 91340 during normal business hours.  In addition, the City 
may also post such documents on the City’s website at www.sfcity.org. In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, if you 
require a disability-related modification/accommodation to attend or participate in this meeting, including auxiliary aids or services please call 
the City Clerk Department at (818) 898-1204 or cityclerk@sfcity.org at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 

 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 5 of 137

https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/
http://www.sfcity.org/
mailto:cityclerk@sfcity.org


This Page  

Intentionally 

Left Blank 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 6 of 137



March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 7 of 137



This Page  

Intentionally 

Left Blank 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 8 of 137



March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 9 of 137



This Page  

Intentionally 

Left Blank 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 10 of 137



March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 11 of 137



This Page  

Intentionally 

Left Blank 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 12 of 137



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

TO THE SAN FERNANDO REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
MINUTES 

JUNE 7, 2021 – 6:00 P.M. 
REGULAR MEETING 

City Hall Council Chambers 
117 Macneil Street 

San Fernando, California 91340 
Teleconference Per Governor Executive Order N-29-20 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

Mayor Sylvia Ballin called the meeting to order at 6:19 p.m. 

Present: 

Council: Mayor Sylvia Ballin, Vice Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmembers 
Celeste Rodriguez and Hector A. Pacheco  

Staff: City Manager Nick Kimball, Assistant City Attorney Richard Padilla, Chief of 
Police Anthony Vairo, Director of Finance Diego Ibañez, Director of Public 
Works Matt Baumgardner, Director of Recreation and Community Services 
Julian Venegas, and City Clerk Julia Fritz  

Absent: Councilmember Cindy Montañez 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Led by City Clerk Fritz 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Mayor Ballin requested that Item No. 12 be heard after Item No. 9.  Motion by Councilmember 
Rodriguez, seconded by Councilmember Pacheco to approve the agenda, as amended. The 
motion carried with Councilmember Montañez absent.  

PUBLIC STATEMENTS 

Education Commission Chair Angel Zobel-Rodriguez commented telephonically expressing her 
appreciation to City Staff who participated in putting on the 2021 Student Scholarship 
Celebration event and thanked all the sponsors that contributed towards the “Student Survival 
Kit”. 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 13 of 137



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
MINUTES – June 7, 2021 
Page 2 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

Councilmember Rodriguez requested to vote separately on Consent Item No. 1a and 1b. 

Motion by Vice Mayor Mendoza, seconded by Councilmember Rodriguez to approve: 

1) a. CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE MINUTES FOR MAY 3, 2021 SPECIAL MEETING.

The motion carried with Councilmember Montañez absent. 

Motion by Vice Mayor Mendoza, seconded by Mayor Ballin to approve: 

1) b. CONSIDERATON TO APPROVE MINUTES FOR JUNE 1 AND JULY 6, 2020 REGULAR
MEETING.

The motion carried by the following vote: 

ROLL CALL 
AYES: Pacheco, Mendoza, Ballin - 3 
NOES:  None 
ABSTAIN: Rodriguez - 1 
ABSENT: Montañez - 1 

Councilmember Rodriguez requested to pull Consent Calendar Item Nos. 4 and 5 for discussion. 

Motion by Councilmember Rodriguez, seconded by Councilmember Pacheco to approve 
Consent Calendar Item Nos. 2 through 7: 

2) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE WARRANT REGISTER

3) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY TREASURER AND
SENIOR ACCOUNTANT TO INVEST SURPLUS FUNDS

4) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE ANNUAL INVESTMENT
POLICY FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021-2022

5) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT RESOLUTIONS APPROVING THE ENGINEER’S REPORT AND
DECLARING THE CITY’S INTENTION TO ORDER THE ANNUAL ASSESSMENTS AND SETTING A
PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE LEVY OF ASSESSMENTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2021-
2022 LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT

6) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE CO-SPONSORSHIP OF THE CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY,
NORTHRIDGE VALLEY NONPROFIT RESOURCES RECOVER ROUNDTABLE EVENT AND THE
USE OF THE CITY SEAL

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 14 of 137



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
MINUTES – June 7, 2021 
Page 3 
 

 
7) INFORMATIONAL UPDATE REGARDING COVID-19 RESPONSE EFFORTS 
 
The motion carried with Councilmember Montañez absent. 
 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS 
 
8) PRESENTATION AND DISCUSSION ON AN INFORMATIONAL REPORT REGARDING THE 

CITY’S UPDATED PAVEMENT MANAGEMENT PROGRAM AND PLAN FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021-
2022 STREET RESURFACING 
 
Director of Public Works Baumgardner provided a presentation and responded to 
Councilmember questions. The City Council received and filed the update report. 

 
9) PRESENTATION AND DISCUSSION REGARDING AN UPDATE ON ENFORCEMENT ACTIVITIES 

ASSOCIATED WITH ILLEGAL FIREWORKS 
 
Police Chief Vairo presented the staff report and responded to Councilmember questions. 
 
By consensus, the City Council directed staff to send public notifications discouraging the 
possession and use of illegal fireworks through door hangers, multiple public service 
announcements/social media, advertisements in the local newspaper, and banners placed 
on major City streets. 

 
12) DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE REINSTITUTING THE CITY SPONSORED 

JULY 4TH FIREWORKS CELEBRATION EVENT SHOW 
 
Councilmember Rodriguez presented the staff report. City Manager Kimball responded to 
Councilmember questions.  
 
Motion by Councilmember Rodriguez, seconded by Mayor Ballin to allocate $35,000 
towards a 4th of July Firework show in 2022. The motion carried with Councilmember 
Montañez absent. 

 
10) DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

WITH LESAR DEVELOPMENT CONSULTANTS FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF A HOMELESSNESS 
PLAN AND RELATED SERVICES 
 
City Manager Kimball presented the staff report and responded to Councilmember 
questions. 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 15 of 137



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
MINUTES – June 7, 2021 
Page 4 

Motion by Councilmember Rodriguez, seconded by Vice Mayor Mendoza to approve a 
Professional Services Agreement (Contract No. 1986) with LESAR Development 
Consultants in an amount not to exceed $25,000, to develop a plan to prevent and 
address homelessness in the City and provide related services; authorize the City Manager 
to make non-substantive changes and execute all related documents; and authorize the 
City Manager to approve an additional scope of work, if necessary, not to exceed the City 
Manager’s purchasing authority. The motion carried with Councilmember Montañez 
absent. 

11) FISCAL YEAR 2021-22 BUDGET STUDY SESSION NO. 4

The City Council recessed its meeting at 8:06 p.m. and reconvened the meeting at
8:14 p.m.

City Manager Kimball presented an Enhancement Requests worksheet and received final
City Council direction regarding enhancement requests, funding, and appropriations and
would be included in the presentation for the final budget adoption on June 21, 2021.

STAFF COMMUNICATION INCLUDING COMMISSION UPDATES 

City Clerk Fritz read an update on activities and programs from San Fernando Library Manager 
Liana Stepanyan. 

Director of Public Work Baumgardner announced that six walking audits and two bike audits 
have been completed and would be distributing data from the audit to City Council in the near 
future.  

Director of Recreation and Community Services Venegas announced the Parks, Wellness, and 
Recreation Commission meeting is June 8 at 6:30 p.m. and noted this would be Chair Sandy 
Richards last meeting due to her retirement.  He further commented the last community 
outreach meeting was held for the Layne Park Project; and announced a pop-up vaccination 
clinic would be held at Las Palmas Park. 

Director of Finance Ibañez announced that staff would be bringing two items to City Council for 
consideration on June 21 regarding the budget adoption and pension obligation bonds. 

Police Chief Vairo announced National Night Out will be officially held in October and requested 
to adjourn the City Council Meeting in memory of Los Angeles County Firefighter Tory Carlon 
and San Bernardino County Sheriff Sergeant Dominic Vaca. 

City Manager Kimball expects certain Covid-19 restrictions to be lifted on June 15th. 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 16 of 137



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
MINUTES – June 7, 2021 
Page 5 

GENERAL CITY COUNCIL/BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS AND LIAISON UPDATES 

Councilmember Rodriguez thanked staff for preparation of the budget and provided 
recommendations to better articulate budget enhancements to the Council and the 
community; and thanked her collegues for approving the 4th of July Celebration event for 2022. 

Councilmember Pacheco thanked Chair Sandy Richards for her great work on the Parks, 
Wellness, and Recreation Commission and encouraged interested members of the community 
to submit a Commissioner application,  and thanked Council for supporting funding towards 
trees and staffs work on the Budget Study Sessions.  

Vice Mayor Mendoza echoed sentiments toward Chair Sandy Richards; asked the ARPA Ad Hoc 
to consider outreach with the residents and business on current Covid-19 assistance and 
thanked staff for their work during the Budget Study Sessions. 

Mayor Ballin thanked staff for their work and expressed appreciation to fellow Councilmembers 
for their collaboration on the budget.  

ADJOURNMENT (10:08 p.m.) 

Mayor Ballin adjourned the meeting in memory of Los Angeles County Firefighter Tory Carlon, 
San Bernardino County Sheriff Sergeant Dominic Vaca, and Baby Jonah Herrera, to the next 
regular meeting of June 21, 2021. 

I do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true 
and correct copy of the minutes of June 7, 2021, 
meeting as approved by the San Fernando City 
Council. 

____________________________ 
Julia Fritz, CMC 
City Clerk 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 17 of 137



This Page  

Intentionally 

Left Blank 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 18 of 137



March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 19 of 137



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 20 of 137



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

TO THE SAN FERNANDO REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
MINUTES 

 
JUNE 21, 2021 – 6:00 P.M. 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

City Hall Council Chamber 
117 Macneil Street 

San Fernando, CA 91340 
TELECONFERENCE PER GOVERNOR EXECUTIVE ORDER N-29-20 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
Vice Mayor Mary Mendoza called the meeting to order at 6:15 p.m. 
 
Present: 
 

Council: Mayor Sylvia Ballin (via teleconference), Vice Mayor Mary Mendoza and 
Councilmember Cindy Montañez, Celeste Rodriguez and Hector A. Pacheco  

 
Staff: City Manager Nick Kimball, Assistant City Attorney Richard Padilla, Chief of 

Police Anthony Vairo, Director of Finance Diego Ibañez, Director of Public 
Works Matt Baumgardner, Director of Recreation and Community Services 
Julian Venegas, and City Clerk Julia Fritz  

 
Absent: None 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Led by City Clerk Julia Fritz 
 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Vice Mayor Mendoza requested Agenda Item No. 14 be heard concurrently with Agenda Item 
No. 9.  Motion by Vice Mayor Mendoza, seconded by Councilmember Montañez. The motion 
carried, unanimously.  
 
 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 21 of 137



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
MINUTES – June 21, 2021 
Page 2 
 
PRESENTATIONS    
 
A) EDUCATION COMMISSION CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT 2021 SCHOLARSHIP RECIPIENT 

FOR THE REPUBLIC SERVICES-CESAR CHAVEZ SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAM TO REGINA 
VELAZQUEZ (VAUGH NEXT CENTURY LEARNING CENTER) 

  
B) PRESENTATION OF A CERTIFICATE OF APPRECIATION TO OUTGOING COMMISSIONER 

SANDRA RICHARDS FOR HER SERVICE ON THE PARKS, WELLNESS AND RECREATION 
COMMISSION  

 
 
PUBLIC STATEMENTS 
 
Renato Vera spoke about the upcoming LGBTQ celebration in the City of San Fernando and 
thanked Councilmember Montañez for supporting the LGBTQ community. 
 
The following submitted public statements in support of Agenda Item 14 regarding a 
Downtown Master Plan: 
 
Rene Aguilar Katherine Hernandez Richard Bernal 
Michael Garcia Michael Morgan Jose Luis Rodriguez SR 
Pearl Arredondo Andrea Grant Magda Banuelos 
Alex Aguilar Judy Quiroz Andrew B. 
Miriam Meza Sandy Skinner Jose Luis Rodriguez 
Valerie Barragan Adriana Felix Michael T. 
Tom Ross Alejandra Palomera Anna 
Cesar Cano Alec Baird Eric Trevino 
Lisa Cano Jennifer Reeinos Patricia T. 
Yvonne Mejia Peña Arlene B. Salazar Lillian Denise Trevino 
Mario Rivera Juana Lopez Paul Trevino 
David Bernal Bianca Cervantes Charles Bernal 
Ana Mejia and Angel Canizales Arlene Perez Andy Alonso 
Christina Bernal Andrew Rome Brittany Rodriguez 
It’s Boba Time San Fernando Desiree J. Ocegneeda Juan Rodriguez 
Alma Aguilar James Stewart Vic C. 
Sergio Amalfitano Vanessa Delgado Brian D. 
Lisa Dinson Julian Ruelas Katherine Martinez 
Jose Catalan Richard Bercalina Elizabeth Ruvalcaba Mendez 
Rebecca Rivera Severyn Aszkenazy Kari Garcia 
Raquel Gorman Connie Perez Yesenia Seda 
Will Endara Rosa Ruvalcaba Amy Ramirez 
Adriana Gomez Tom Ross J. Ross 
Cristian Rodriguez Gloria’s Furniture Joeleen and Miguel Medina 
Ramon and Margarita Gomez Albert Melena Sandra Silva 
Miguel Montanez Bart Trevino  Pricilla Estrada 
 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 22 of 137



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
MINUTES – June 21, 2021 
Page 3 
 
Liana Stepanyan San Fernando Library Manager provided updates regarding San Fernando 
Library’s lunch and reading program and Summer Discovery program. 
 
Paul Ventimiglia submitted a public comment on behalf of the SFPOA regarding next fiscal 
year’s budget and requesting Council approve all additions to Police personnel and equipment. 
 
Arlene Sacco, Kiwanis Club President, and Cynthia submitted a public comment regarding their 
support of the Beautification Program. 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
Motion by Councilmember Montañez, seconded by Councilmember Pacheco to approve:  
 
1) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE CITY COUNCIL MINUTES FOR THE FOLLOWING MEETINGS: 

 
a. MAY 17, 2021 SPECIAL MEETING (CLOSED SESSION)  
b. JULY 20, 2020 REGULAR MEETING 
 

2) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE WARRANT REGISTER 
 

3) CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL TO WRITE-OFF BAD DEBT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020-2021 
 

4) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION SETTING THE FISCAL YEAR 2021-2022 ARTICLE 
XIIIB APPROPRIATIONS (GANN) LIMIT  

 
5) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT RESOLUTIONS APPROVING THE SALARY PLAN AND TABLE OF 

ORGANIZATION FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021-2022  
 

6) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING SENATE BILL 1: THE ROAD REPAIR 
AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT OF 2017 FUNDS AND APPROVING THE PROJECT LIST FOR 
FISCAL YEAR 2021-2022 

 
7) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE AN EXECUTIVE ORDER ESTABLISHING AND IMPLEMENTING 

THE COVID-19 OUTDOOR SERVICES PERMIT PROGRAM THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2021 
 

The motion carried, unanimously. 
 
 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 23 of 137



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
MINUTES – June 21, 2021 
Page 4 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
8) A PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER ADOPTION OF A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE 2020 

URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN  
 

Vice Mayor Mendoza opened the public hearing. 
 
Director of Public Works Baumgardner presented the staff report and John Robertson 
Consulting provided a presentation and responded to Councilmember questions. 
 
Vice Mayor Mendoza opened public comment, there being no public testimony, Vice 
Mayor Mendoza closed the public hearing. Motion by Councilmember Montañez, 
seconded by Councilmember Rodriguez to close the public hearing. By consensus, the 
motion carried. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Pacheco, seconded by Mayor Ballin to adopt Resolution  
No. 8074 as presented in the Supplemental Agenda Item that revised the resolution to 
include components of the Water Shortage Contingency Plan (UWMP) (Section 8 of the 
UWMP).  The motion carried, unanimously. 

 
Vice Mayor Mendoza requested Item No. 14 be heard concurrently with Item No. 9. 
 
9) A PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER ADOPTION OF A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FISCAL 

YEAR 2021-2022 CITY BUDGET  
 
Vice Mayor Mendoza opened the Public Hearing. 
  
City Manager Kimball and City Department Heads presented a staff report and 
summarized Department enhancement requests. 
 
Vice Mayor Mendoza opened public comment, there being no public testimony, Vice 
Mayor Mendoza closed the public hearing. Motion by Councilmember Rodriguez, 
seconded by Councilmember Montanez to close the public hearing. The motion carried.  

 
Motion by Councilmember Montañez, seconded by Councilmember Pacheco to adopt 
Resolution No. 8075 approving the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Budget, and to allocate $25,000 
toward the Downtown Masterplan and authorize staff to add any newly approved 
position to the organization table. The motion carried with Mayor Ballin absent. 
 

14) CONSIDERATION AND DISCUSSION REGARDING COMMUNITY BENEFIT OF A MASTER PLAN  
  
 Councilmember Rodriguez presented the staff report. 
 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 24 of 137



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
MINUTES – June 21, 2021 
Page 5 
 
It was noted that Mayor Ballin left the meeting at 8:55 p.m. 
 

Motion by Councilmember Rodriguez, seconded by Councilmember Pacheco to allocate 
the $50,000 already earmarked in the budget, add $25,000 surplus from budget towards a 
master plan, and begin work when the Economic Development Manager is hired.  

 
The motion carried by the following vote: 

 
 ROLL CALL 
 AYES: Rodriguez, Pacheco, Montañez, - 3 
 NOES: Mendoza - 1 
 ABSTAIN: None 
 ABSENT: Ballin – 1 
 

It was noted, City Council recessed the meeting at 9:25 p.m., and reconvened at 9:36 p.m. 
 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS 
 
City Manager Kimball requested that Agenda Item Nos. 10 and 11 be presented together 
and voted on separately.   
 

10) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE A SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
AGREEMENT WITH JOHN ROBINSON CONSULTING, INC. FOR CONSTRUCTION 
MANAGEMENT SERVICES RELATED TO THE UPPER RESERVOIR REPLACEMENT PROJECT 
 
Director of Public Works Baumgardner presented the staff report for Item Nos. 10 and 11. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Pacheco, seconded by Vice Mayor Mendoza to approve a 
second Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement with John Robinson 
Consulting, Inc. (Contract No. 1912(b)) for construction management services related to 
the Upper Reservoir Replacement Project; and authorize the City Manager to execute the 
Agreement and all related documents. The motion carried with Mayor Ballin absent. 
 

11) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE A FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
AGREEMENT WITH CWE FOR CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES RELATED TO THE 
SAN FERNANDO REGIONAL PARK INFILTRATION PROJECT 
 
Motion by Councilmember Pacheco, seconded by Vice Mayor Mendoza to approve a first 
Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement with CWE (Contract No. 1883(a)) for 
construction management services related to the San Fernando Regional Park Infiltration 
Project; and authorize the City Manager to execute the Agreement and all related 
documents. The motion carried with Mayor Ballin absent. 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 25 of 137



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
MINUTES – June 21, 2021 
Page 6 
 
12) INFORMATIONAL UPDATE REGARDING COVID-19 RESPONSE EFFORTS 

 
City Manager Kimball presented an update on the most current information associated 
with Governor Newsom’s Executive Order regarding masks, social distancing, and 
capacity.  The City Council received and filed the report.  
 

13) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION DECLARING JUNE 2021 AS PRIDE MONTH IN 
THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
 

Councilmember Cindy Montañez presented the staff report. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Montañez, seconded by Councilmember Rodriguez to adopt a 
resolution declaring June as Pride Month in the City of San Fernando.  The motion carried 
with Mayor Ballin absent. 
 

15) CONSIDERATION AND DISCUSSION REGARDING APPROVAL OF A SAN FERNANDO 
BEAUTIFICATION PROGRAM 

 
Councilmember Cindy Montañez presented the staff report. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Rodriguez, seconded by Councilmember Montañez to approve 
the Beautification program and staff to return with information on implementation. 
 
The motion failed by the following vote: 
 
 ROLL CALL 
 AYES: Rodriguez, Montañez - 2 
 NOES: Pacheco, Mendoza - 2 
 ABSTAIN: None 
 ABSENT: Ballin – 1 
 
Motion by Councilmember Pacheco to create a Beautification Ad Hoc Committee with 
Councilmember Pacheco and Montañez to serve on the committee.  Motion failed due to 
lack of second. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Montañez, seconded by Councilmember Rodriguez to create a 
Neighborhood Beautification Ad Hoc Committee with Councilmember Montañez and 
Rodriguez to serve on the committee.  The motion carried with Mayor Ballin absent. 
 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 26 of 137



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
MINUTES – June 21, 2021 
Page 7 
 
16) CONSIDERATION TO CANCEL THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL AND SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO 

THE SAN FERNANDO REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING ON JULY 6, 2021 
 
Motion by Councilmember Pacheco, seconded by Vice Mayor Mendoza to cancel the 
Regular City Council and Successor Agency to the San Fernando Redevelopment Agency 
meeting on July 6, 2021.  The motion carried with Mayor Ballin absent. 
 

 
STAFF COMMUNICATION INCLUDING COMMISSION UPDATES 
 
City Clerk Fritz announced the next Education Commission meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, 
June 29, 2021, to discuss the student scholarship program. 
 
Police Chief Vairo had no updates to report. 
 
Director of Public Works Baumgardner announced a pop-up event this weekend between  
12-6pm by Toole Design presenting priorities for the Safe and Active Streets Project. 
 
Director of Recreation and Community Services Venegas announced the Parks, Wellness, and 
Recreation Commission meeting will be held on July 13, 2021, and they plan to discuss the 
mural process; day camp activities are slowly re-opening; and encourages residents to 
participate in the 4th of July Treasure Hunt.  
 
Director of Finance Ibañez announced staff submitted an application to receive American 
Rescue Care Act Funds. 
 
City Manager Kimball thanked staff and Council for their help on the budget. 
 
 
GENERAL CITY COUNCIL/BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS AND LIAISON UPDATES 
 
Councilmember Rodriguez expressed thanks on the approval of the budget, declaring June as 
Pride month; and thanked colleagues for the robust discussion. 
 
Councilmember Pacheco thanked staff for putting together the budget and the Council for 
discussion and compromise; thanked Sandra Richards for her service on the Commission; and 
announced Juneteenth has been recognized as a National Holiday. 
 
Councilmember Montañez reminded residents to participate in the vendor pop-up scheduled 
on the 4th Saturday of every month; thanked staff and Councilmembers for the budget 
discussions and adopting the budget; and echoed sentiments regarding Juneteenth.  
 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 27 of 137



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
MINUTES – June 21, 2021 
Page 8 
 
Vice Mayor Mendoza thanked everyone for submitting public comments this evening, thanked 
colleagues and staff for the adoption of the budget; and acknowledged the new federal holiday, 
Juneteenth. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT (10:42 p.m.)  
 
Vice Mayor Mendoza adjourned the meeting in memory of Maria Rosaria Rodriguez to the next 
regular meeting of July 19, 2021. 
 
 

I do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and 
correct copy of the minutes of June 21, 2021 
meeting as approved by the San Fernando City 
Council. 
 
 
____________________________ 
Julia Fritz, CMC 
City Clerk 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 28 of 137



March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 29 of 137



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 30 of 137



 
 

CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

TO THE SAN FERNANDO REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
MINUTES 

 
FEBRUARY 22, 2022 – 6:00 P.M. 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBER 
117 MACNEIL STREET 

SAN FERNANDO, CALIFORNIA 91340  
TELECONFERENCE – PURSUANT TO PROVISIONS OF ASSEMBLY BILL 361 

 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL   Mayor Mary Mendoza called the meeting to order at 6:07 p.m. 
 
Present: 
 

Council: Mayor Mary Mendoza, Councilmember Sylvia Ballin, Councilmember Celeste 
Rodriguez 

 
Absent: Vice Mayor Hector A. Pacheco and Councilmember Cindy Montañez  

 
Staff: City Manager Nick Kimball, Assistant City Attorney Richard Padilla, Police 

Chief Fabian Valdez, Director of Public Works Matt Baumgardner, Director 
of Community Development Kanika Kith, Interim/Acting Director of Finance 
Sonia Garcia, Director of Recreation and Community Services Julian Venegas, 
and City Clerk Julia Fritz  

 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Led by City Clerk Julia Fritz  
 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
City Manager Kimball stated that there being three Councilmembers in attendance tonight, he 
recommended that Agenda Item 8 be pulled from the agenda which involves an urgency 
ordinance that requires 4/5ths vote by the City Council and suggested having a special meeting 
on March 1, 2022. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Ballin, seconded by Councilmember Rodriguez to approve the agenda 
as amended.  The motion carried, with Vice Mayor Pacheco and Councilmember Montañez 
absent. 
 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 31 of 137



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
MINUTES – Regular Meeting February 22, 2022 
Page 2 of 6

 
PRESENTATIONS  

 
A. EDUCATION COMMISSION CERTIFICATE OF RECOGNITION FOR FEBRUARY STUDENT OF THE 

MONTH 
• EMELY CORTEZ (SOCIAL JUSTICE HUMANITAS ACADEMY) 
 

B. ADMINISTER OATH OF OFFICE - SWEARING IN CEREMONY FOR NEW POLICE CHIEF FABIAN 
VALDEZ 
 
City Clerk Fritz administered the Oath of Office to new Police Chief Fabian Valdez.  

 
City Council recessed the meeting at 6:22 p.m. and reconvened at 6:30 p.m. 

 
 

PUBLIC STATEMENTS    
  
Carolyn Urquides from the Kidney Quest Foundation shared the services the foundation provides 
to the community. 
 
Gina Chavez and Ellen Mackey spoke via Zoom to express support for Adan Ortega serving as the 
City of San Fernando’s representative on the Metropolitan Water District Board. 
 
City Clerk Fritz read public comments submitted via email in support of Adan Ortega serving as 
the City of San Fernando’s representative on the Metropolitan Water District Board: 
 
1. Wesley Chuang 
2. Steve Usher 
3.  Nancy Blastos 
4.  Bill Trice, Jr. 
5.  Jerry Butkiewicz 
6.  Ken Sanford 
7.  Pastor Joe Cervantes 
8.  Godfrey Wachira  
9.  Lional Mares 
10. Luis Alfredo Vazquez 
 
City Council recessed the meeting at 6:59 p.m. and reconvened at 7:06 p.m.  
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
Mayor Mendoza requested to pull Consent Item No. 4 and 7 for further discussion. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Ballin, seconded by Councilmember Rodriguez to approve Item Nos. 
1-3, 5 and Item No. 6.  
 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 32 of 137



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
MINUTES – Regular Meeting February 22, 2022 
Page 3 of 6

 
1) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE CITY COUNCIL AND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING 

MINUTES FOR: 
 
a. April 1, 2008 Redevelopment Agency  c. April 15, 2008 - Special Meeting  

Special Meeting d. May 5, 2008 - Regular Meeting 
b. May 5, 2008 Redevelopment Agency  e. May 5, 2008 - Special Meeting 

Special Meeting  f. February 7, 2022 - Special Meeting  
 

2) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE WARRANT REGISTER 
 

3) CONSIDERATION TO AUTHORIZE THE PURCHASE AND INSTALLATION OF CRADLEPOINT 
R1900 WIRELESS MODEMS  
 

5) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE A MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT WITH LOS ANGELES 
DEPARTMENT OF WATER AND POWER REGARDING CONSTRUCTION OF THE SAN 
FERNANDO REGIONAL PARK INFILTRATION PROJECT  
 

6) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION INITIATING PROCEEDINGS FOR FISCAL YEAR 
2022-2023 LEVY OF ANNUAL ASSESSMENTS FOR THE LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING 
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT AND ORDERING THE ENGINEER’S REPORT 

 
The motion carried, with Vice Mayor Pacheco and Councilmember Montañez absent.  

 
Items pulled for discussion 
 
4) CONSIDERATION TO AUTHORIZE USE OF THE CITY SEAL BY THE EDUCATION COMMISSION 

FOR A LETTER SOLICITING DONATIONS FOR THE STUDENT SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAM  
 

Director of Recreation and Community Services Venegas provided additional information 
regarding the staff report.  
 
Motion by Councilmember Ballin, seconded by Councilmember Rodriguez to direct staff to 
return with a revised letter that contains wording be concise and straightforward regarding 
the intent of the donation request to the March 1, 2022 Special City Council Meeting.  The 
motion carried, with Vice Mayor Pacheco and Councilmember Montañez absent.  

 
7) RECEIVE AND FILE AN UPDATE REGARDING COVID-19 RESPONSE EFFORTS 

 
City Manager Kimball provided additional information subsequent to the staff report being 
distributed about the small business grant program and eligibility qualifications. City 
Council received and filed the report. 

 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
8) A PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER ADOPTING AN INTERIM URGENCY ORDINANCE 

EXTENDING THE INTERIM REGULATIONS FOR URBAN LOT SPLITS AND HOUSING 
DEVELOPMENT IN SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL (R-1) ZONE FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF 
SENATE BILL 9 THROUGH JANUARY 19, 2023 
 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 33 of 137



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
MINUTES – Regular Meeting February 22, 2022 
Page 4 of 6

 
City Manager Kimball stated that this item requires a 4/5th vote of the City Council and 
therefore requested that the item be continued due to the absence of two 
Councilmembers, to a special meeting date certain of March 1, 2022.  
 
Motion by Councilmember Ballin, seconded by Councilmember Rodriguez to continue the 
public hearing to a date certain of March 1, 2022 as a special meeting.  The motion carried, 
with Vice Mayor Pacheco and Councilmember Montañez absent. 
 

 
ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS 

 
9) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AMENDMENTS TO THE SAN 

FERNANDO MUNICIPAL CODE ADOPTING BY REFERENCE THE 2020 EDITION CITY OF LOS 
ANGELES BUILDING AND FIRE CODES  
 
Director of Community Development Kith presented the staff report and responded to 
Councilmember questions.  
 
Motion by Councilmember Ballin, seconded by Mayor Mendoza to introduce for first 
reading, in title only, and waive further reading of Ordinance No. 1708 “An Ordinance of 
the City of San Fernando, California, amending Articles I, II, III, IV, V, IX, and X of Chapter 18 
of the San Fernando Municipal Code adopting by reference Division II of Chapter 1 of the 
2019 Edition of the California Building Code, which is codified in Part 2 of Title 24 of The 
California Code of Regulations; the 2020 Edition of the City of Los Angeles Building Code, as 
in effect December 27, 2019; the 2020 Edition of the City of Los Angeles Electrical Code, as 
in effect December 27, 2019; the 2020 Edition of the City of Los Angeles Mechanical Code, 
as in effect December 27, 2019; the 2020 Edition of the City of Los Angeles Plumbing Code, 
as in effect December 27, 2019; the 2020 Edition of the City of Los Angeles Residential Code, 
as in effect December 27, 2019; and the 2020 Edition of the City Of Los Angeles Green 
Building Code, as in effect December 27, 2019, which are codified in Articles 1, 1.5, 3, 4, 5 
and 9 of Chapter IX of The City of Los Angeles Municipal Code, including appendices, 
amendments, additions, and deletions thereto; amending Article II of Chapter 38 of the San 
Fernando Municipal Code, adopting by reference the City of Los Angeles Fire Code, as in 
effect May 24, 2020, which is codified in Article 7 of Chapter V of The City of Los Angeles 
Municipal Code, including appendices, amendments, additions and deletions thereto”; and 
direct staff to provide for notice of a Public Hearing on the proposed adoption of Ordinance 
No. 1708 at the March 21, 2022 regular City Council meeting.  The motion carried, with Vice 
Mayor Pacheco and Councilmember Montañez absent. 
 

10) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT FUNDING FROM THE CALIFORNIA 
TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION AND AUTHORIZATION TO PROCEED WITH 
CONSTRUCTION FOR THE PACOIMA WASH BIKEWAY PROJECT AND ADOPT A MITIGATED 
NEGATIVE DECLARATION AND MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 
UNDER THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT  
 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 34 of 137



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
MINUTES – Regular Meeting February 22, 2022 
Page 5 of 6

 
Director of Public Works Baumgardner presented the staff report and responded to 
Councilmember questions.  
 
Motion by Councilmember Ballin, seconded by Mayor Mendoza to adopt Resolution  
No. 8122 to i) accept funding from the California Transportation Commission (CTC); ii) 
proceed with construction from Caltrans for the Pacoima Wash Bikeway Project within the 
City’s boundary; and iii) adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring 
and Reporting Program for the Pacoima Wash Bikeway Project within the City’s boundary; 
and authorize staff to execute all related documents and take all related actions to 
implement the Resolution.  The motion carried, with Vice Mayor Pacheco and 
Councilmember Montañez absent. 

 
11) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING A JOB SPECIFICATION FOR THE 

POSITION OF DEPUTY CITY MANAGER 
 
City Manager Kimball presented the staff report and responded to Councilmember 
questions. 
 
By consensus, the City Council directed staff to begin discussion of position during the Fiscal 
Year 2022-2023 budget review process.  
 

12) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION OPPOSING BALLOT INITIATIVE 21-0042A1 
 
City Manager Kimball presented the staff report and responded to Councilmember 
questions. 
 
By consensus, the City Council directed staff to return with additional information at a 
future City Council meeting.  
 

13) CONSIDERATION TO DESIGNATE VOTING DELEGATE AND ALTERNATE TO REPRESENT THE 
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO AT THE SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 
2022 REGIONAL CONFERENCE AND GENERAL ASSEMBLY ANNUAL BUSINESS MEETING 

 
City Manager Kimball presented the staff report and responded to Councilmember 
questions.  
 
Motion by Councilmember Ballin, seconded by Mayor Mendoza to designate 
Councilmember Celeste Rodriguez as delegate and Vice Mayor Hector A. Pacheco as 
alternate, one of which who may attend as the City’s representative for the Southern 
California Association of Governments 2022 Regional Conference and General Assembly 
Annual Business Meeting; and authorize the City Clerk to transmit information on the 
selected voting Delegate and Alternate designation to the SCAG Clerk of the Board.  The 
motion carried with Vice Mayor Pacheco and Councilmember Montañez absent. 

 
 

  

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 35 of 137



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
MINUTES – Regular Meeting February 22, 2022 
Page 6 of 6

 
STAFF COMMUNICATION INCLUDING COMMISSION UPDATES 
 
City Clerk Fritz welcomed Police Chief Valdez. 
 

Director of Public Work Baumgardner announced the department released RFPs for the Upper 
Reservoir Project, Pico Street Restoration Repaving Project, Sidewalk Repair Project, and 
Repaving of City Streets.  
 
Director of Recreation and Community Services Venegas announced the Education Commission 
meets tomorrow, and all recreation programs are beginning to reopen to the community.  
 
Director of Community Development Kith announced the Planning and Preservation 
Commission met on February 14, 2022, and conducted a reorganization of the commission. 
 
Interim/Acting Director of Finance Garcia announced the Town Hall meeting for Measure A/SF 
is scheduled for February 28, 2022, at 6:30 p.m. 
 

City Manager Kimball thanked City Council for the Strategic Planning Meeting.  
 

Police Chief Valdez thanked the City Council for their support. 
 
 
GENERAL CITY COUNCIL/BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS AND LIAISON UPDATES 
 
Councilmember Rodriguez welcomed Chief Valdez, spoke about the Strategic Planning Meeting, 
and encouraged businesses to apply to the small business grant program. 
 

Councilmember Ballin thanked staff for their hard work, mentioned she is looking forward to 
working with the new Police Chief and expressed her gratitude towards Adan Ortega. 
 

Mayor Mendoza had no updates to report.  
 
 

ADJOURNMENT (8:30 p.m.) 
 
Mayor Mendoza adjourned the meeting to the special meeting of March 1, 2022.  
 

I do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and 
correct copy of the minutes of the February 22, 2022, 
regular meeting as approved by the San Fernando 
City Council.  
 
 
 __________________________________________ 
Julia Fritz, CMC 
City Clerk 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 36 of 137



March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 37 of 137



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 38 of 137



 
 

CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

TO THE SAN FERNANDO REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
MINUTES 

 
MARCH 21, 2022 – 6:00 P.M. 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBER 
117 MACNEIL STREET 

SAN FERNANDO, CALIFORNIA 91340  
TELECONFERENCE – PURSUANT TO PROVISIONS OF ASSEMBLY BILL 361 

 

 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL   Mayor Mary Mendoza called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
Present: 
 

Council: Mayor Mary Mendoza, Vice Mayor Hector A. Pacheco, Councilmembers 
Sylvia Ballin, Cindy Montañez, and Councilmember Celeste Rodriguez 
(arrived at 6:39 p.m.) 

 
Absent: None 
 
Staff: City Manager Nick Kimball, Assistant City Attorney Richard Padilla, Police 

Chief Fabian Valdez, Director of Public Works Matt Baumgardner, Director 
of Community Development Kanika Kith, Interim/Acting Director of Finance 
Sonia Garcia, Director of Recreation and Community Services Julian Venegas, 
and City Clerk Julia Fritz  

 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Led by City Clerk Julia Fritz  
 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

Motion by Councilmember Ballin seconded by Vice Mayor Pacheco to approve the agenda.  The 
motion carried, with Councilmember Rodriguez absent. 
 
 
PRESENTATIONS  

 
A. EDUCATION COMMISSION CERTIFICATE OF RECOGNITION FOR THE MARCH STUDENTS OF 

THE MONTH 
 Arianna Silva (San Fernando Institute for Applied Media MS) 
  Nicholas Flores (Social Justice Humanitas Academy) 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 39 of 137



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
MINUTES – Regular Meeting March 21, 2022 
Page 2 of 6

 
B. PRESENTATION OF A CERTIFICATE OF RECOGNITION TO JAVIER VERDIN FOR HIS SERVICE TO 

THE COMMUNITY 
 
C. PRESENTATION OF CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION TO MEMBERS OF THE SAN FERNANDO 

MASONIC LODGE NO. 343 FOR THEIR SERVICE TO THE COMMUNTTY 
  
 
PUBLIC STATEMENTS    
 
Everto Ruiz spoke about the Cesar Chavez Commemorative Committee and the fees for the 
guided tours at the Cesar Chavez Memorial. 
 
Victoria Garcia spoke in support of the Cesar Chavez agenda item and spoke about the Technical 
Advisory Committee for the Housing Element and expressed concerns. 
 
James Thomas, San Fernando Valley President of the NAACP, spoke via Zoom regarding his 
concerns with the City’s appointment of Adan Ortega to the Metropolitan Water District Board. 
 
Julie Cuellar spoke via Zoom against low-income housing in the Downtown Mall area. 
 
Darrell Goode, Area Director of NAACP, spoke via Zoom regarding his concerns with the City’s 
appointment of Adan Ortega to the Metropolitan Water District Board. 
 
Liana Stepanyan San Fernando Library Manager provided updates regarding the library hours, 
on-going programs, and resuming Metro TAP services. 
 
Equality California and OUT Against Tobacco representative spoke about the impact of flavored 
tobacco on the community and suggested restricting the sale of flavored tobacco in San 
Fernando.  
 
It was noted that Councilmember Rodriguez arrived at 6:39 p.m. 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
Councilmember Ballin and Councilmember Montañez requested to pull Agenda Item No. 3 for 
discussion. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Ballin, seconded by Vice Mayor Pacheco to approve Consent Calendar 
Item Nos. 1, 2, 4, 5, 6 and 7.   
 
 

1) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE CITY COUNCIL AND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING 
MINUTES FOR: 
 
a. May 13, 2008 – Special Meeting 
b. March 7, 2021 – Regular Meeting 

 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 40 of 137



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
MINUTES – Regular Meeting March 21, 2022 
Page 3 of 6

 
2) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE WARRANT REGISTER 

 
4) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE CO-SPONSORSHIP OF THE VALLEY ECONOMIC ALLIANCE 

HOUSING CRISIS AWARENESS CAMPAIGN AND THE USE OF THE CITY SEAL 
 

5) CONSIDERATION TO AUTHORIZE A PURCHASE ORDER WITH DOWNTOWN FORD SALES FOR 
A 2023 FORD F650 REGULAR CAB DUMP TRUCK WITH GASOLINE ENGINE UNDER THE STATE 
OF CALIFORNIA COOPERATIVE PURCHASING CONTRACT 1-18-23-10A 
 

6) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING CONGESTION MITIGATION 
AND AIR QUALITY PROGRAM GRANT FUNDS FOR THE SAN FERNANDO PACOIMA WASH BIKE 
PATH PROJECT 

 
7) RECEIVE AND FILE AN UPDATE REGARDING COVID-19 RESPONSE EFFORTS 

 
The motion carried, unanimously. 
 
 
Items Pulled for Discussion 
 
3) CONSIDERATION TO RECEIVE AND FILE, AND AUTHORIZE STAFF TO SUBMIT THE GENERAL 

PLAN HOUSING ELEMENT ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2021 
 
City Manager Kimball and Director of Community Development Kith responded to 
Councilmember questions.  
 
Motion by Vice Mayor Pacheco, seconded by Councilmember Rodriguez to receive and file 
the General Plan Housing Element Annual Progress Report for Calendar Year 2021; 
authorize staff to submit the Housing Element Annual Progress Report to the California 
Department of Housing and Community Development and the Governor’s Office of 
Planning and Research; and  directed staff to present an update at the next City Council 
meeting, on the City’s legislative advocacy efforts associated with opposing the Regional 
Housing Needs Assessment (RHNA) allocation methodology.   
 
The motion carried by the following vote: 
 
 ROLL CALL  
 AYES:  Rodriguez, Ballin, Pacheco, Mendoza - 4 
 NAYES:  Montañez - 1 
 ABSTAIN:  None 
 ABSENT:  None 

 
 
  

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 41 of 137



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
MINUTES – Regular Meeting March 21, 2022 
Page 4 of 6

 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
8) A PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER ADOPTION AND SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE  

NO. 1708, APPROVING AMENDMENTS TO THE SAN FERNANDO MUNICIPAL CODE 
ADOPTING BY REFERENCE THE 2020 EDITION CITY OF LOS ANGELES BUILDING AND FIRE 
CODES 
 
Mayor Mendoza opened the public hearing. 
 
Director of Community Development Kith presented the staff report.  
 
Mayor Mendoza called for public testimony and there being none, Mayor Mendoza closed 
the public hearing.  Motion by Councilmember Ballin, seconded by Councilmember 
Rodriguez to close the public hearing.  The motion carried, unanimously. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Ballin, seconded by Councilmember Rodriguez to approve the 
second reading to adopt Ordinance No. 1708, in title only, “An Ordinance of the City of San 
Fernando, California, amending Articles I, II, III, IV, V, IX, and X of Chapter 18 of the San 
Fernando Municipal Code adopting by reference Division II of Chapter 1 of the 2019 Edition 
of the California Building Code, which is codified in Part 2 of Title 24 of The California Code 
of Regulations; the 2020 Edition of the City of Los Angeles Building Code, as in effect 
December 27, 2019; the 2020 Edition of the City of Los Angeles Electrical Code, as in effect 
December 27, 2019; the 2020 Edition of the City of Los Angeles Mechanical Code, as in 
effect December 27, 2019; the 2020 Edition of the City of Los Angeles Plumbing Code, as in 
effect December 27, 2019; the 2020 Edition of the City of Los Angeles Residential Code, as 
in effect December 27, 2019; and the 2020 Edition of the City Of Los Angeles Green Building 
Code, as in effect December 27, 2019, which are codified in Articles 1, 1.5, 3, 4, 5 and 9 of 
Chapter IX of The City of Los Angeles Municipal Code, including appendices, amendments, 
additions, and deletions thereto; amending Article II of Chapter 38 of the San Fernando 
Municipal Code, adopting by reference the City of Los Angeles Fire Code, as in effect May 
24, 2020, which is codified in Article 7 of Chapter V of The City of Los Angeles Municipal 
Code, including appendices, amendments, additions and deletions thereto.” 
 
The motion carried, unanimously. 

 
9) A PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER AUTHORIZING PARTICIPATION IN THE LOS ANGELES 

COUNTY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT REVOLVING FUND TOWARD THE 
SMALL BUSINESS GRANT PROGRAM AND ALLOCATE FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023 COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FUNDS TO REPAY THE REVOLVING FUND 

 
Mayor Mendoza opened the public hearing. 
 
City Manager Kimball presented the staff report and responded to Councilmember 
questions.   
 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 42 of 137



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
MINUTES – Regular Meeting March 21, 2022 
Page 5 of 6

 
Mayor Mendoza called for public testimony and there being none Mayor Mendoza closed 
the public hearing.  Motion by Councilmember Ballin, second by Councilmember Rodriguez 
to close the public hearing. 
 
Motion by Vice Mayor Pacheco, seconded by Councilmember Rodriguez to authorize a 
drawdown of $200,000 from the Los Angeles County Community Development Block Grant 
Revolving Grant Fund to allocate toward the City’s Small Business Grant Program; approve 
the allocation of $200,000 of the City’s Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Community Development 
Block Grant funds to repay the Revolving Grant Fund; and authorize the City Manager, or 
designee, to submit documentation conveying the City Council’s approval to the Los 
Angeles County Community Development Authority.  The motion carried, unanimously. 

 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS 
 
Vice Mayor Mendoza requested Agenda Item No. 11 be heard before Item No. 10. 
 
11) PRESENTATION OF DEVELOPMENT OPTIONS BY AZURE DEVELOPMENT, INC., FOR THE 

OPPORTUNITY SITE AT PUBLIC PARKING LOT NO. 3 
 
City Manager Kimball and Director of Community Development Kith presented the staff 
report.  
 
Azure Development President Vanessa Delgado presented three development options for 
the site at Parking Lot No. 3 and responded to Councilmember questions. 
 
By consensus of the City Council, staff was directed to bring this matter back for discussion 
at a meeting in June 2022 or later in order to allow the developer sufficient time to perform 
public outreach and communicate the three development options presented by Azure. 

 
10) DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION REGARDING CITY SUPPORT IN CELEBRATING THE 

LEGACY OF CESAR E. CHAVEZ 
 

 Councilmember Rodriguez presented the staff report. 
  

Motion by Councilmember Rodriguez, seconded by Vice Mayor Pacheco to approve  
co-sponsorship for this year's events with Cesar Chavez Commemorative Committee 
(CCCC); approve the City Manager to waive city fees associated with the event; and re-
establish a formal partnership with the CCCC by extending the term of the Memorandum 
of Understanding to 2027, with Pueblo y Salud, Inc. 
 

It was noted that City Council recessed at 7:53 p.m. and reconvened at 8:05 p.m. with 
Councilmember Rodriguez absent. 
 

 
STAFF COMMUNICATION INCLUDING COMMISSION UPDATES 
 
City Clerk Fritz reported information regarding the in-person vote centers at the San Fernando 
Recreation Park and Las Palmas Park. 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 43 of 137



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
MINUTES – Regular Meeting March 21, 2022 
Page 6 of 6

 
Police Chief Valdez provided an update on traffic enforcement detail. 
 
Director of Recreation and Community Services Venegas provided updates on Heart, Mind, and 
Soul health fair; fruit tree giveaway at Pioneer Park on April 2, 2022; and that the Education 
Commission will meet on March 29, 2022, to select scholarship recipients. 
 
Director of Community Development Kith announced the RFP for Climate Action and Resilience 
Plan is available on the City website and reported that Code Enforcement will be in the field 
performing site reviews for property maintenance issues.  
 

Interim/Acting Director of Finance Garcia announced in April there will be an agenda item 
discussing the Strategic Goal and Priorities for next Fiscal Year.  
 
City Manager Kimball announced a report to provide an update on the final American Rescue 
Plan Act (ARPA) regulations. 
 

 
GENERAL CITY COUNCIL/BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS AND LIAISON UPDATES 
 

Councilmember Montañez acknowledged the Homeless Ad Hoc Committee and their work and 
progress; thanked the Public Works Department and Beautification Program for clean-up in the 
City; and thanked Chief Valdez for presentation during Neighborhood Watch. 
 
Councilmember Ballin expressed excitement from the community regarding Target and 
expressed concerns of the lack of quorum for the Parks, Wellness, and Recreation Commission;  
 
Vice Mayor Pacheco provided an update from the ARPA Ad Hoc. 
 
Mayor Mendoza requested staff provide recommendation regarding the Parks, Wellness, and 
Recreation Commission.  
 
 
ADJOURNMENT (9:38 p.m.) 
 

Mayor Mendoza adjourned the meeting to the next regular meeting.  
 

I do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and 
correct copy of the minutes of the March 21, 2022, 
regular meeting as approved by the San Fernando 
City Council.  
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Julia Fritz, CMC 
City Clerk  

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 44 of 137



March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 45 of 137



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 46 of 137



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES 

 
MARCH 6, 2023 – 5:15 P.M.  

SPECIAL MEETING 
 

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
117 MACNEIL STREET 

SAN FERNANDO, CALIFORNIA 91340  
 
 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Rodriguez called the special meeting to order at 5:15 p.m. 
 
Present: 
 

Council: Mayor Celeste T. Rodriguez, Vice Mayor Mary Mendoza, and 
Councilmembers Cindy Montañez Joel Fajardo, and Mary Solorio 

 
Staff:  City Manager Nick Kimball and Assistant City Attorney Richard Padilla 

 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Motion by Councilmember Fajardo, seconded by Councilmember Montañez to approve the 
agenda.  The motion carried, unanimously.  
 
 
PUBLIC STATEMENTS - WRITTEN/ORAL   None 
 

 
RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION (5:16 P.M.)  
 

By consensus, Councilmembers recessed to Closed Session. 
 

A) CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR PURSUANT TO G.C. §54957.6: 
  

Designated City Negotiators:  City Manager Nick Kimball 
Employees and Employee Bargaining Units: 

San Fernando Management Group (SEIU, Local 721) 
San Fernando Public Employees’ Association (SEIU, Local 721) 
San Fernando Police Officers Association 
San Fernando Police Officers Association Police Management Unit 
San Fernando Police Civilian Association 
San Fernando Part-Time Employees’ Bargaining Unit (SEIU, Local 721) 
All Unrepresented Employees 

 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 47 of 137



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES – MARCH 6, 2023 
Page 2 

 

 
RECONVENE/REPORT OUT FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 
It was noted, the City Council adjourned its regular meeting at 8:02 p.m. and went back into 
Closed Session. 
 
Assistant City Attorney Padilla stated there was no reportable action as a result of the Closed 
Session meeting held on March 6, 2023, at 5:15 p.m. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT (10:24 p.m.) 
 
The City Council adjourned the special meeting to the next regular City Council meeting. 
 

 
I do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and 
correct copy of the minutes of March 6, 2023, 
Special Meeting, as approved by the San Fernando 
City Council. 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Julia Fritz, CMC 
City Clerk 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 48 of 137



March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 49 of 137



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 50 of 137



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

TO THE SAN FERNANDO REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
 MINUTES 

 
MARCH 6, 2023 – 6:00 P.M. 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
117 MACNEIL STREET 

SAN FERNANDO, CALIFORNIA 91340  
 

 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 

Mayor Celeste Rodriguez called the meeting to order at 6:06 p.m. 
 

Present:   Council: Mayor Celeste Rodriguez, Vice Mayor Mary Mendoza, and Councilmembers 
Cindy Montañez, Joel Fajardo, and Mary Solorio 

 

Staff: City Manager Nick Kimball, Assistant City Attorney Norma Tabares, Police 
Chief Fabian Valdez, Director of Finance Erica Melton, Director of 
Community Development Kanika Kith, Director of Public Works Matthew 
Baumgardner, Director of Recreation and Community Services Julian 
Venegas and City Clerk Julia Fritz 

 
Absent: None 
 
 

TELECONFERENCING REQUESTS/DISCLOSURE 
 

No requests to be considered. 
 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
 

Led by City Clerk Julia Fritz 
 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

Motion by Vice Mayor Mendoza, seconded by Councilmember Solorio to approve the agenda. 
The motion carried, unanimously. 
 
 

PRESENTATION 
 
Police Chief Valdez introduced to City Council, new employees Police Officer Ivan Moran, Gema 
Espinoza Police Desk Officer and Jennifer Spatig Management Analyst.  

 
 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 51 of 137



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
MINUTES – Regular Meeting February 21, 2023 
Page 2 of 5

 
A. PRESENTATION BY SOUTH COAST AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT’S GOVERNING 

BOARD VICE-CHAIR MICHAEL CACCIOTTI TO PROVIDE AIR QUALITY UPDATES 
 
B. PRESENTATION OF A PROCLAMATION DECLARING THE MONTH OF MARCH 2023 AS 

“WOMEN’S HISTORY MONTH” 
 

 
PUBLIC STATEMENTS    
 
Maria Tostado, spoke about her frustration with the lack of information given to the community 
regarding the recent trash utility rate increase.  
 
Virginia Barragan, spoke about her concerns with not being informed on projects and activities 
occurring in the City.  
 
Julissa Hernandez, Field Representative from the Office of Assemblymen Luz Rivas, provided 
updates on community events. 
 
Paula Acuna, submitted a written comment on February 21 and was inadvertently omitted during 
the meetings public comment period.  Ms. Acuna’s letter was read into the record and she stated 
her support of Police Chief Valdez.  
 
Liana Stepanyan, San Fernando Library Manager provided library updates including programs and 
services offered to the community.  
 
Victor Crisanto, member of Los Angeles Out Against Big Tobacco Coalition spoke about the 
negative effects of and is opposed to all tobacco products. 
 
Sylvia Ballin, submitted a written comment stating her support of Patty Lopez to serve as a 
Commissioner on the Parks, Wellness and Recreation Commission. 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
Motion by Councilmember Fajardo, seconded by Councilmember Solorio to approve:  

 
1) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES: 

 

a. January 31, 2022 – Special Meeting 
b. February 21, 2023 – Special Meeting 
 

2) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE WARRANT REGISTER 
 

3) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT RESOLUTIONS ESTABLISHING NEW JOB SPECIFICATIONS IN THE 
PUBLIC WORKS AND RECREATION AND COMMUNITY SERVICES DEPARTMENTS AND 
AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023 SALARY PLAN AND TABLE OF ORGANIZATION 

 
4) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE THE 2023 LEGISLATIVE PLATFORM 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 52 of 137



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
MINUTES – Regular Meeting February 21, 2023 
Page 3 of 5

 
5) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE A FIRST AMENDED AND RESTATED PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

AGREEMENT WITH SCOTT FAZEKAS & ASSOCIATES, INC. TO PROVIDE BUILDING PLAN CHECK 
AND BUILDING OFFICIAL SERVICES THROUGH APRIL 14, 2024 

 
The motion carried, unanimously. 
 
It was noted, Mayor Rodriguez pulled Agenda Item No. 7 to be heard before Agenda Item No. 6. 
 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS 
 
7) CONSIDERATION TO APPOINT A PARKS, WELLNESS, AND RECREATION COMMISSIONER 
 

Motion by Vice Mayor Mendoza, seconded by Mayor Rodriguez to approve appointment 
of Patty Lopez as Vice Mayor Mendoza’s representative to serve as Commissioner on the 
Parks, Wellness, and Recreation Commission.  The motion carried, unanimously.  

 
6) CONSIDERATION AND DISCUSSION REGARDING UPDATING THE PARK AND RECREATION 

MASTER PLAN AND CONSIDERATION TO AUTHORIZE A NOTICE INVITING BIDS TO CONDUCT 
A LAND AND OPEN SPACE INVENTORY 
 
Director of Recreation and Community Services Venegas presented the staff report and 
responded to Councilmember questions.  
 
Motion by Mayor Rodriguez, seconded by Mayor Mendoza to authorize a Notice Inviting 
Bids to conduct a land and open space inventory; adopt Resolution No. 8220 to allocate a 
Los Angeles County Regional Parks Open Space District Technical Assistance Program grant, 
which increases the Capital Grants (Fund 010) revenues and expenditures by $185,000 for 
Fiscal Year 2022-2023.  The motion carried, unanimously. 

8) CONSIDERATION AND DISCUSSION TO NOMINATE TRANSPORTATION AND PUBLIC SAFETY 
COMMISSION CHAIR RUDY TRUJILLO TO SERVE ON THE METRO SAN FERNANDO VALLEY 
SERVICE COUNCIL FOR A THREE-YEAR TERM BEGINNING JULY 1, 2023 
 
Motion by Mayor Rodriguez, seconded by Councilmember Solorio to approve nomination 
of Transportation and Public Safety Commission Chair Rudy Trujillo to serve on the Metro 
San Fernando Valley Service Council for a three-year term beginning July 1, 2023; and as 
amended to direct staff to solicit applications for nominations for the next term of July 2026 
– July 2029 and applicants would be considered by the City Council for final selection.  

 

The motion carried with the following vote: 
 

 ROLL CALL 
  AYES:  Solorio, Montanez, Mendoza, Rodriguez - 4 
  NAYES:  None 
  ABSENT: None 
  ABSTAIN: Fajardo – 1 
 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 53 of 137



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
MINUTES – Regular Meeting February 21, 2023 
Page 4 of 5

 
STAFF COMMUNICATION INCLUDING COMMISSION UPDATES 
 
Director of Recreation and Community Services Venegas mentioned upcoming community 
events and at the next Parks, Wellness and Recreation Commission meeting two new 
Commissioners will be official sworn into office.  
 
Director of Public Works Baumgardner provided a brief update on the slurry seal phase 1 project 
and delays due to rain and cold weather and noted that street striping is scheduled to begin this 
week.  
 
Director of Community Development Kith spoke about the small business grant program, 
announced Robeks Fresh Juices and Smoothies grand opening event, and mentioned at the 
upcoming Planning and Preservation Commission meeting the topic of discussion will be on 
heights of walls and a moratorium on artificial turf and information on the Annual Housing 
Report.  
 
Director of Finance Melton stated the City will hosts its Annual Measure A/SF Town Hall meeting 
in the last week of March and encourages residents to seek utility assistance programs including 
new program assistance from SoCal Gas to assist qualified customers with utility payments. 
 
Police Chief Valdez mentioned that the Police Department will be holding its Community 
Academy tomorrow at 6pm in the Council Chamber. 
 
City Manager Kimball spoke about opening day events for the upcoming Mission City Baseball 
league.  
 
City Clerk Fritz had no updates to report and she requested that the meeting tonight be 
adjourned in memory of Lily Rose Solis, Deputy City Clerk/Management Analyst Crystal Solis 
grandmother. 
 
 
GENERAL CITY COUNCIL/BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS AND LIAISON UPDATES 
 
Councilmember Fajardo spoke about his concerns associated with compliance with City Council 
approved actions.  
 
Councilmember Montañez spoke about the Strategic Priority Setting and Study Session meeting, 
mentioned she attended the Mission City Baseball opening day events, the Strategic Goals ad hoc 
committee meeting where community survey results were discussed, and encouraged the 
community to continue submitting surveys.  
 
Councilmember Solorio spoke about the Mission City Baseball opening day parade and events 
and stated she attended the Police Department’s Community Academy.  
 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 54 of 137



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
MINUTES – Regular Meeting February 21, 2023 
Page 5 of 5

 
Vice Mayor Mendoza mentioned she attended the Parent University, participated in the 
Diversity, Equity  and Inclusion (DEI) ad hoc committee meeting and was informed on information 
from the County’s Public Health Department during its regular meeting updates for elected 
officials.  She also noted attending the swearing-in ceremony for Victoria Garcia to serve as 
Commissioner to the Transportation and Public Safety Commission, briefly spoke about the 
priority setting meeting and stated she participated in the Mission City Baseball opening day 
activities. 
 
Mayor Rodriguez spoke about the DEI ad hoc committee meeting, noted she attended the L.A 
County City Section committee meeting, recognized Police Chief Valdez for all the informational 
workshops being held and talked about incorporating the workshops with the San Fernando 
Health Fair, spoke about the Strategic Priority Setting meeting, and mentioned she attended the 
Mission City Baseball opening day parade and events and thanked staff for putting on the event.  
 
 
ADJOURNMENT (8:02 p.m.) 
 

Mayor Rodriguez adjourned the meeting in memory of Lily Rose Solis and recessed back into 
Closes Session.  
 
 

I do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and 
correct copy of the minutes of the March 6, 2023, 
regular meeting as approved by the San Fernando 
City Council.  
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Julia Fritz, CMC 
City Clerk 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 55 of 137



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 56 of 137



March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 57 of 137



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 58 of 137



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-7307                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director        ☐ Deputy City Manager       ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Celeste T. Rodriguez and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By: Erica D. Melton, Director of Finance/City Treasurer 
    
Date:  March 20, 2023    
 
Subject: Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Approving the Warrant Register 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 23-032 (Attachment “A”) approving 
the Warrant Register. 
 
  
BACKGROUND: 

For each City Council meeting the Finance Department prepares a Warrant Register for Council 
approval.  The Register includes all recommended payments for the City. Checks, other than 
special checks, generally are not released until after the Council approves the Register.  The 
exceptions are for early releases to avoid penalties and interest, excessive delays and in all other 
circumstances favorable to the City to do so.  Special checks are those payments required to be 
issued between Council meetings such as insurance premiums and tax deposits.  Staff reviews 
requests for expenditures for budgetary approval and then prepares a Warrant Register for 
Council approval and or ratification.  Items such as payroll withholding tax deposits do not require 
budget approval. 
 
The Director of Finance/City Treasurer hereby certifies that all requests for expenditures have 
been signed by the department head, or designee, receiving the merchandise or services thereby 
stating that the items or services have been received and that the resulting expenditure is 
appropriate.  The Director of Finance/City Treasurer hereby certifies that each warrant has been 
reviewed for completeness and that sufficient funds are available for payment of the warrant 
register. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: 

A. Resolution No. 23-032, including: 
Exhibit A: Payment Demands/Voucher List 

ANill 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 59 of 137



ATTACHMENT “A” 
RESOLUTION NO. 23-032 

 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, 
CALIFORNIA, ALLOWING AND APPROVING FOR PAYMENT DEMANDS 
PRESENTED ON DEMAND / WARRANT REGISTER NO. 23-032 

 
 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, FIND, DETERMINE 
AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1.  That the Payment Demand/Voucher List (EXHIBIT “A”) as presented, having been duly 
audited, for completeness, are hereby allowed and approved for payment in the amounts as 
shown to designated payees and charged to the appropriate funds as indicated. 
 

2.  That the City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Resolution and deliver it to the 
City Treasurer. 
 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 20th day of March 2023. 
 
  
                 

Celeste T. Rodriguez, Mayor of the           
City of San Fernando, California                                

ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 60 of 137



RES. NO. 23-032 

2 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 
 
I, City Clerk of the City of San Fernando, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, 
true, and correct copy of Resolution No. 23-032, which was regularly introduced and adopted by 
the City Council of the City of San Fernando, California, at a regular meeting thereof held on the 
20th day of March, 2023, by the following vote of the City Council: 
 
 

AYES:  
 
NAYS:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAINED:  

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have here unto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the 
City of San Fernando, California, this ______ day of March, 2023. 

 
 
 

  
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

 
 
 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 61 of 137



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 23-032

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 62 of 137



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 23-032

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 63 of 137



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 23-032

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 64 of 137



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 23-032

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 65 of 137



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 23-032

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 66 of 137



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 23-032

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 67 of 137



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 23-032

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 68 of 137



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 23-032

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 69 of 137



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 23-032

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 70 of 137



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 23-032

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 71 of 137



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 23-032

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 72 of 137



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 23-032

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 73 of 137



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 23-032

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 74 of 137



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 23-032SPECIAL CHECK

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 75 of 137



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 23-032SPECIAL CHECKS

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 76 of 137



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 23-032SPECIAL CHECK

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 77 of 137



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 23-032SPECIAL CHECK

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 78 of 137



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 23-032

SPECIAL CHECK

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 79 of 137



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 80 of 137



March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 81 of 137



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 82 of 137



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

POLICE DEPARTMENT                 910 FIRST STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-1254                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☐ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Celeste T. Rodriguez and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By: Fabian Valdez, Police Chief  
  Jennifer Spatig, Management Analyst 
   
Date:  March 20, 2023 
 
Subject: Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Appointing the City Manager, Police Chief, 

and Director of Public Works as the City’s Designated Authorized Agents to the 
Governor’s Office of Emergency Services for All Matters Pertaining to Requests for 
State Disaster Assistance Funds 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommend that the City Council: 
 
a. Adopt Resolution No. 8222 (Attachment “A”) appointing the City Manager, Police Chief, and 

Director of Public Works as the City’s Designated Authorized Agents when requesting disaster 
relief funds from the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) or California Office of 
Emergency Services (CalOES); and 

 
b. Authorize the City Manager to execute all related documents. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
1. The Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) and California Office of Emergency 

Services (CalOES) are Federal and State agencies, respectively, whose purpose is to help local 
authorities and First Responders prepare for, respond to, recover from, and mitigate major 
emergencies and disasters.  

 
2. In the event of an emergency or natural disaster such as flooding or a major earthquake, the 

Federal Government or State of California can declare a state of emergency allowing for 
emergency aid and resources to local governmental entities impacted by the disaster.  

 
3. If the Federal Government or the State of California declares a State of Emergency due to a 

natural disaster or other emergency event impacting the City, the Predesignated Authorized 
Agent would have the authority to request emergency resources and execute necessary 
agreements without undue delay.   

 

ANill 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 83 of 137



Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Appointing the City Manager, Police Chief, and Director of Public 
Works as City’s Designated Authorized Agents to the Governor’s Office of Emergency Services for All 
Matters Pertaining to Requests for State Disaster Assistance Funds 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 
4. On April 6, 2020, City Council approved the Designation of Applicant's Agent Resolution for 

Non-State Agencies Form (Resolution No. 7996).  
 
 

ANALYSIS: 
 
The purpose of the Designation of Applicant’s Agent Resolution for Non-State Agencies form is to 
appoint an Authorized Agent to act on the City’s behalf with FEMA and the California Governor’s 
Office of Emergency Services in matters related to existing and future disaster-related grants. 
These disaster-related grants include (but are not limited to) the following: 

 
a. Fire Mitigation Assistant Grant (FMAG) 
b. California State Only Disaster (CDAA) 
c. Immediate Services Program (ISP) 
d. Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) 
e. Immediate Service Program (ISP) 
f. Building Resilient Infrastructure and Communities (BRIC) 
g. Legislative Pre-Disaster Mitigation Program (LPDM) 
h. Flood Mitigation Assistance Program (FMA) 
i. National Earthquake Hazards Reduction Program (NEHRP) 
j. California Early Earthquake Warning (CEEW) 

 
 
Chapter 26, Section 62 of the San Fernando Municipal Code designates the City Manager as the 
Director of Emergency Services, with the Police Chief as Vice Director, and the Director of Public 
Works as Assistant Director during civil emergencies.  Pursuant to CalOES Form 130, (Attachment 
A), a designation of authorized agents is required of all applicants to be eligible for funding. A 
new resolution is required every three years.  
  
Staff recommends submitting the form as a “Universal Resolution” pursuant to Attachment A. 
This makes the designation of an Authorized Agent effective for open and future disasters/grants 
declared up to three (3) years following the date of approval.  
 
The advance designation of the authorized agent and approval of this form submittal will assist 
in expediting requests for disaster assistance in the event of a declared emergency. 
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
There is no budgetary impact associated with approval of Staff’s recommendation.  
 
 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 84 of 137



Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Appointing the City Manager, Police Chief, and Director of Public 
Works as City’s Designated Authorized Agents to the Governor’s Office of Emergency Services for All 
Matters Pertaining to Requests for State Disaster Assistance Funds 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
Designating the City Manager, Police Chief, and Public Works Director as the authorized agents 
for FEMA and CalOES will allow the city to apply for grants and State disaster assistance while 
providing a contact point for disaster relief funding requests. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
 
A. Resolution No. 8222 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 85 of 137



DESIGNATION OF APPLICANT'S AGENT RESOLUTION FOR

- Federally declared Disaster (DR), Fire Mitigation Assistance Grant (FMAG),
California State Only Disaster (CDAA), Immediate Services Program (ISP), Hazard
Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP), Building Resilient Infrastructure and
Communities (BRIC), Legislative Pre-Disaster Mitigation Program (LPDM), 

-

- Flood Mitigation Assistance Program (FMA)

- National Earthquake Hazards Reduction Program (NEHRP) 

- California Early Earthquake Warning (CEEW)

OES-Rev. 2022

CITY COUNCIL CITY OF SAN FERNANDO

CITY MANAGER

POLICE CHIEF

DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS

CITY OF SAN FERNANDO

CITY OF SAN FERNANDO

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 86 of 137



Please check the appropriate box below

CERTIFICATION

OES- -Rev. 2022

RES. NO. 8221

✔

CELESTE T. RODRIGUEZ, MAYOR

JULIA FRITZ CITY CLERK

CITY OF SAN FERNANDO

CITY COUNCIL

CITY OF SAN FERNANDO

CITY CLERK

□ 

□ 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 87 of 137



Cal OES Form 130 Instructions 

A Designation of Applicant’s Agent Resolution for Non-State Agencies is required of all 
Applicants to be eligible to receive funding. A new resolution must be submitted if a 
previously submitted resolution is older than three (3) years from the last date of 
approval, is invalid, or has not been submitted. 

Resolution Section: 

Governing Body

Name of Applicant

Authorized Agent

and

OES- -Rev. 2022

RES. NO. 8221March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 88 of 137



Checking Universal or Disaster-Specific Box:

Governing Body Representative

cannot

Certification Section: 

Name and Title

cannot

OES- -Rev. 2022

RES. NO. 8221March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 89 of 137



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 90 of 137



March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 91 of 137



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 92 of 137



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-1222                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☐ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Celeste T. Rodriguez and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By: Matt Baumgardner, Director of Public Works 
  Kenneth Jones, Management Analyst 
 
Date:  March 20, 2023 
 
Subject: A Public Hearing to Determine if Any Non-Profit Agencies are Readily Available to 

Provide Fixed-Route Transit Services within the City of San Fernando  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council: 

 
a. Conduct a public hearing to receive public comment and to determine whether any private 

non-profit agencies are readily available to provide fixed-route transit services within the City; 
and 
 

b. Pending public testimony, adopt Resolution No. 8221 (Attachment “A”) certifying there are 
no non-profit agencies readily available to provide fixed-route transit services within the City.  
 

 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
1. On February 16 and 23, 2023, a Notice of Public Hearing (Attachment “B”) was published in 

the San Fernando Valley Sun Newspaper regarding the City’s intent to apply for a Federal 
Transit Administration Grant: Section 5310 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with 
Disabilities Program.   

 
2. On February 27, 2023, staff submitted a Section 5310 grant application under the 

“Traditional” capital projects category for funding to purchase two 18-passenger shuttles and 
two wheelchair accessible vehicles (WAVs). 
 
 

ANALYSIS: 
 
The City provides both a fixed-route (Trolley) and non-fixed route on-demand (Mission City 
Transit) transportation service.  The fixed-route service utilizes two City-owned trolleys and is 

ANill 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 93 of 137



A Public Hearing to Determine if Any  Non-Profit Agencies are Readily Available to Provide Fixed-Route 
Transit Services within the City of San Fernando  
Page 2 of 3 
 
 
currently operated by Parking Company of America (PCA). PCA also operates the City’s on-
demand transportation service, which utilizes two PCA-owned seven passenger WAVs.   
 
The existing trolleys are 15 years old, which makes it very difficult and expensive to obtain 
replacements parts. Due to the difficulty of obtaining replacement parts, both trolleys combined 
have been out of service 20 out of the last 24 months.  Having access to additional WAV’s will 
allow the City to enhance its on-demand service by providing individuals 65+ and individuals with 
disabilities same day transit services for unforeseen emergencies and last-minute appointments.  
Obtaining project funding through the Fiscal Year (FY) 2023 Section 5310 grant program will allow 
the City to replace two trolleys and purchase two WAVs. 
 
The goal of the Section 5310 Program is to improve mobility for seniors and individuals with 
disabilities by removing barriers to transportation services and expanding the transportation 
mobility options available when public transit is insufficient, inappropriate, or unavailable.  To 
accomplish this goal, the Section 5310 Program provides operating and capital assistance for 
public transportation projects by funding eligible capital expenditures that qualify as 
“Traditional” Section 5310 projects, as well as “Other” projects that are other capital and 
operating projects.  
 
To be eligible to receive funding through the “Traditional” Section 5310 Capital projects category, 
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (Metro) requires a local 
governmental authority applying for funding to conduct a public hearing certifying that there are 
no? non-profit organizations readily available in the area to provide fixed-route transit services 
in the City. The public hearing must be scheduled to adhere to the minimum required 30-day 
public comment period prior to the date of the public hearing.  
 
Metro is the designated recipient of Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section 5310 Enhanced 
Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities fund and is responsible for allocating funds 
to eligible projects and programs approved by the Metro Board of Directors to receive a Section 
5310 funding award.  Approximately $7 million of Section 5310 funds are available per year for 
Los Angeles County. Every few years Metro allocates these funds utilizing a formula and 
competitive solicitation process. The current Section 5310 solicitation allows eligible applicants 
to request project funding up $1,200,000.   
 
Traditional Section 5310 Project Examples Include: 
• Vehicle and fleet expansion and replacement. 
• Wheelchair lifts, ramps, securement devices, and safety barriers. 
• Transit-related information technology systems, including scheduling and dispatching 

systems. 
• Mobility management programs. 
• Acquisition of transportation services under a contract, lease, or other arrangement. 
 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 94 of 137



A Public Hearing to Determine if Any  Non-Profit Agencies are Readily Available to Provide Fixed-Route 
Transit Services within the City of San Fernando  
Page 3 of 3 
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
The City is applying for $360,000 in Section 5310 Grant funds, comprised of $220,000 for two 18-
passenger shuttles and $140,000 for two seven-passenger WAVs.  The grant requires a 15 percent 
match, which totals $64,000 bringing the total budget for the purchasing of vehicles to $424,000.  
Proposition C (Prop C) local funds will be used to comply with the match requirement. During the 
FY 2023-2024 budget process, staff will request to have the $64,000 included within the proposed 
Prop C budget.  
 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council conduct a public hearing and adopt Resolution No. 8221 
certifying there are no non-profit agencies readily available to provide fixed-route transit services 
within the City. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
A. Resolution No. 8221 
B. Public Hearing Notice 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 95 of 137



ATTACHMENT “A” 

RESOLUTION NO. 8221 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, 
CALIFORNIA, CERTIFYING THERE ARE NO NON-PROFIT AGENCIES READILY 
AVAILABLE TO PROVIDE FIXED-ROUTE TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 
WITHIN THE CITY  

 
 

WHEREAS, the City of San Fernando (“City”) provides transportation services to the 
community, including seniors and individuals with disabilities; and 

WHEREAS, the Federal Transit Administration Section 5310 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors 
and Individuals with Disabilities Program (“Section 5310 Program”) provides operating and 
capital assistance for public transportation projects that i) are planned, designed and carried out 
to meet the special needs of seniors (65+) and individuals with disabilities (any age) when 
public transportation is insufficient, inappropriate, or unavailable; ii) exceed the requirements 
of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990; iii) improve access to fixed route service 
and decrease reliance on complementary paratransit, and/or iv) provide alternatives to public 
transportation projects for seniors (65+) and individuals with disabilities (any age); and 

WHEREAS, the Federal Transit Administration grants Section 5310 Program funds to 
certified recipients under 49. U.S.C.A section 5310(b)(1), who may allocate funds received under 
the Program to subrecipients under 49. U.S.C.A section 5310(b)(2), including state and local 
governmental authorities, on a fair and equitable basis; and 

WHEREAS, under 49. U.S.C.A section 5310(b)(2), state and local governmental 
authorities may receive funds if they certify that there are no private non-profit 
organizations readily available in the area to provide the public transportation services 
under the program; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (“Metro”) 

is the designated recipient of Section 5310 Program funds apportioned for the areas in Los 
Angeles County that are within the urbanized areas of Los Angeles-Long Beach-Anaheim 
(UZA 60020), Lancaster-Palmdale (UZA 63570) and Santa Clarita (UZA 61770); and 

 
WHEREAS, Metro is currently accepting applications from potential subrecipients for 

Section 5310 Program funding for the 2023 Fiscal Year, with an application deadline of 
February 27, 2023; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City wishes to enhance transportation services for seniors and 

individuals with disabilities by applying for Federal Transit Administration Section 5310 
Program (“Section 5310 Program”) grant funds administered by Metro, and seeks to certify 
that there are no non-profit organizations readily available in the area to provide the public 
transportation services under the program. 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 96 of 137



RES. NO. 8221 

2 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO DOES HEREBY 
RESOLVE, FIND, DETERMINE, AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. The City Council set March 20, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. as the date and time for 
a public hearing as required as part of the Section 5310 Program grant. 

SECTION 2. If no non-profit organizations who are readily available in the area to 
provide public transportation services, as defined under 29. U.S.C.A section 5310(a)(1), do not 
come forward at the public hearing, the City Council hereby authorizes and directs staff to 
proceed with Metro’s Section 5310 Program application process to receive funds as a 
subrecipient. 

SECTION 3. The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this resolution and shall cause 
a certified resolution to be filed in the Office of the City Clerk. 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED THIS 20th day of March, 2023. 

 

              
Celeste T. Rodriguez, Mayor of the City of 
San Fernando, California 

ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 97 of 137



RES. NO. 8221 

3 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 
 
I, City Clerk of the City of San Fernando, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, 
true, and correct copy of Resolution No. 8221, which was regularly introduced and adopted by 
the City Council of the City of San Fernando, California, at a regular meeting thereof held on the 
20th day of March, 2023, by the following vote of the City Council: 
 
 

AYES:  
 
NAYS:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAINED:  

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the 
City of San Fernando, California, this _____ day of March, 2023.  
 
 
 
 

  
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

 
 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 98 of 137



CITY COUNCIL 

MAYOR 
CELESTE T. RODRIGUEZ 

VICE MAYOR 
MARY MENDOZA 

COUNCILMEMBER 
CINDY MONTAÑEZ 

COUNCILMEMBER 
JOEL FAJARDO 

COUNCILMEMBER 
MARY SOLORIO 

PUBLIC WORKS  
DEVELOPMENT 

117 MACNEIL STREET 
SAN FERNANDO 
CALIFORNIA 
91340 

(818) 898-1222

WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

NOTICE OF A PUBLIC HEARING 
BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, 
CALIFORNIA TO RECEIVE COMMENTS FROM NONPROFIT 
AGENCIES REGARDING THE CITY OF SAN FERNADO’S INTENT 
TO APPLY FOR A FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINSTRATION GRANT 
SECTION 5310 ENHANCED MOBILITY OF SENIORS AND 
INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES PROGRAM 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN A public hearing on this matter and associated 
analysis will be conducted by the City of San Fernando City Council as follows: 

DATE AND TIME: March 20, 2023, 6:00 p.m. 
LOCATION:   City Hall Council Chambers, 117 Macneil Street, 

San Fernando, CA 91340 

DESCRIPTION: Notice is hereby given that the City Council of the City of San 
Fernand will conduct a public hearing to receive comments from nonprofit agencies 
regarding the City of San Fernando’s intent to apply for a Federal Transit 
Administration (FTA) Section 5310 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with 
Disabilities Program.  

The City of San Fernando will apply to purchase replacement vehicles for the Fixed-
Route Transit Service. The Fixed-Route Transit Service provides residents of the City, 
65 years of age or older and persons with disabilities, transportation services. The 
Fixed Route Transit Service operates Monday – Friday 10:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. and 
Saturday/Sunday 11:00 a.m. – 4:00 p.m. The cost per trip is $0.25. 

The Public Hearing will be held in the City Council Chamber, 117 Macneil Street, San 
Fernando, California 91340 on March 20, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. or as soon thereafter as 
the matter may be heard.  At that time, any interested person is welcome to attend 
and be heard on this matter. 

A public hearing is required to allow private nonprofit agencies to demonstrate 
whether they are readily available to provide fixed-route transit services. “Readily 
Available” is defined as “interested, willing, and capable of providing the proposed 
service at a comparable cost to the identified clientele, in the same service area, with 
the same hours of frequency, and the same level of service.” If nonprofit agencies 
cannot carry out the proposed service, the public agency becomes eligible to apply 
for funding.  

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, if you need 
special assistance accessing the meeting, please contact The City of San Fernando at 
(818) 898-1222 by Friday, March 17.

ATTACHMENT "B"

SAN F ER._NANID 
March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 99 of 137

http://www.sfcity.org/


PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 
Section 5310 Grant Application 
Page 2 of 2 

Dated this 13th day of February 2023. 
City of San Fernando, California 

_________________________ 
/s/ Julia Fritz, City Clerk 
Published in the Sun Newspaper on February 16, 2023 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 100 of 137



Your Rerum Mailing Address 

Name: San Fernando Sun 
Address: 1150 San Fernando Road, Suite 100 
City: San Fernando State CA Zip Code: 91340 

Proof of Publication -

(20155 C.C.P.) 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
COUNTY OF WS ANGELES 

The undersigned says: 

I am a citizen of the United States, and 
a resident of .he county aforesaid; 1 am 
over the age of eighteen years; and I 
am not a party to or interested in the 
notice published. I am the chief legal 
advertising clerk of the publisher of the 

San Fernando Valley Sun 

a newspaper of general circulation, printed and 
published weekly in the San Fernando Valley, 
in the County of Los Angeles, and which 
newspaper has been adjudged a 
newspaper of general circulation 
by the Superior Court of the County 
of Los Angeles, State of California, 

Under the date of 8-16, 1945 

Case Number 503894 

that the notice, of which the annexed is a printed 
copy has been published in each regular and entire 
issue of said newspaper and not in any supplement 
There of on the following dates, to-wit: 

2/16/2023 

all in the year 2023. I certify (or declare) 
under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true 
and correct. Dated at San Fernando California, on 
this 16th day of February, 2023 

Signature, 

Erica Ramos 
SAN FERNANDO VALLEY SUN 
1150 SAN FERNANDO ROAD, SUITE 100 
SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340 

NOTICE OF A PUBLIC HEARING 
BY lllE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, CALI
FORNIA TO RECEIVE COMMENTS 
FROM NONPROAT AGENCIES 
REGARDING THE CITY OF SAN 
FERNADO'S INTENT TO APPLY 
FOR A FEDERAL TRANSIT AD· 
MINSTRAllON GRANT SECTION 
5310 ENHANCED MOBILITY OF 
SENIORS AND INDMDUALS wrrH 
DISABILmES PROGRAM 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a 
Public Hearing wtH be held by the 
City Council of the City of San Fer
nando to l'l!C8ive comments from 
private nonprofit agencies regarding 
the City's Intent to apply for a Federal 
Transit Administration (FTA) Section 
5310 Enhanced Moblllty of Senlon1 
and lndMduals with Disabilities Pro
gram funds. The City will apply to 
purchase replacement vehicles for 
the Fixed-Route Transit Service that 
provides transportation services to . 
City residents 65 years and older i 
and persons with disabilities. Transit 1 
service OperateS Monday - Friday 
1 OAM to 4PM and Saturday/Sunday 
11AM - 4PM, and cost per trip/per
son Is $0.25. 

A public hearing is required to al
low private nonprofit agencies to 
demonstrate whether. they are reed
lly available to provide fixed-route 
transit services. "Readily Avallable" 
Is defined as "interested, willing, and 
capable of providing the proposed 
service at a oomperable cost to 
the Identified cllentele, In the same 
service area, with the same hours 
of flequency, and the same level of 
service.• If nonprofit agencies can
not carry out the proposed service, 
the public agency becomes eligible 
to apply for funding. Coples of the 
staff report will be available for pub
lic review after 12:00 noon on Friday, 
March 17, 2023, on the City's Web-. ' 
site https;//ci sao-feroaodo,ca.us/ 
and at the City Clerk's Office, 117 
Macneil Street, San Fernando; CA 
91340. Questions may be referred 
to Management Analyst, Kenneth 
Jones at kjonesOsfcity org. Please 
refer to File: Financing of Energy . . 
Services Contract. The Public Hear
ing will be held in the City Coun-
cil Chamber, 117 Macneil Street, ' 
San Fernando, California 91340 on 
March 20, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. or as 
soon thereafter es the matter may be 
heard. Af that time, any Interested 
person Is welcome to attend and be 
heard on this matter. In accordance 
with the Americans with Disabilities 
Act of 1990, If you require a disabll
ity-related modification/accommo
dation to attend or participate In this 
meeting, including auxllla,y aids or 
services please call the City Clerk 
Department at {818) 898-1204 at 
least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 
Dated this 16th day of Februa,y 2023 
City of 5an Fernando, California 
ls/Julia Fritz, City Clerk 
Published In the Sun Newspaper on 
February 16, 2023 
L13155 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 101 of 137



Your Return Mailing Address 

Name: San Fernando Sun 
Address: 1150 San Fernando Road, Suite 100 
City: San Fernando State CA Zip Code: 91340 

Proof of Publication -

(20155 C.C.P.) 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 

The undersigned says: 

I am a citizen of the United States, and 
a resident of the county aforesaid; I am 
over the age of eighteen years; and I 
am not a party to or interested in the 
notice published. I am the chief legal 
advertising clerk of the publisher of the 

San Fernando Valley Sun 

a newspaper of general circulation, printed and 
published weekly in the San Fernando Valley, 
in the County of Los Angeles, and which 
newspaper has been adjudged a 
newspaper of general circulation 
by the Superior Court of the County 
of Los Angeles, State of California, 

Underthedateof8-16, 1945 

Case Number 503894 

that the notice, of which the annexed is a printed 
copy has been published in each regular and entire 
issue of said newspaper and not in any supplement 
There of on the following dates, to-wit 

2/23/2023 

all in the year 2023. I certify ( or declare) 
under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true 
and correct. Dated at San Fernando California, on 
this 23th day of February, 2023 

Signature, 

Erica Ramos 
SAN FERNANDO VALLEY SUN 
1150 SAN FERNANDO ROAD, SUITE 100 
SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340 

NOTICE OF A PUBUO HEARING 

t 

BY THE CrTY COUNCIL OF THE 
· CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, CALI

FORNIA TO RECEVE COMMENTS 
FROM NONPROFIT AGENCIES 

! REGARDING THE CITY OF SAN 
I FERNADO'S INTENT TO APPLY 

FOR A FEDERAL TRANSIT AD
MINSTRATION GRANT SECTION 
5310 ENHANCED MOBIUTY OF 
SENIORS AND INDIVIDUALS WITH 
DISABILITIES PROGRAM 
NOTICE IS HEREBY- GIVEN that a 
Public Hearing wlU be held by the 
ctty Council of the City of san Fer
nando to racelve comments from . 
private nonprofit agencies regarding 

. the City's intent to apply for a Federal 
. Tranelt Admlnlstnrllon · (FTA) Sectfoi\ 

5310 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors 
. . and Individuals with Dlsabllttles Pro- · 

gram funds. The City will apply to 
purchase replacement vehicles for 

the Fixed-Route Transit Service that · 
provides traneportdon !l8!VicBs to 
City residents 65 years and older 
and persons with dlaabllltles. ltan8lt 
service operate9 Monday - Friday 
10AM to 4PM and s.turctay/Sunday 
11AM - 4PM, and coet per trip/per~ 
sonls$025. 

A public ~ is recJlll'ed to al- . 
low prlvalB nonproftl egenctea to . 
dltnoll!ICI- whether~ -·,wj,. 
Ny IIVllllable to provide flxad-rou'9 
tnnllt ..vices. "Readily Avallable" 
IB d811ned - "lntenlsted, willing, and 
capable of pruvkftng the propolllld 

:WV10e at a ciomPldi1fe c:011t _, 
h lden1llled cllentel!t, 111 the ~ 
'ierv!oe ina; wttri 1he same ·~ 
"'frequency, and t11e same 1eve1 or 

. NIVlce.. If nonprofit agencies can-
not cary out the propo99d service, 
the public agency ~ effglble 

, to apply for funding. COples of the 
staff report wilt be llllllilabte for pub-
lic review after 12:00 noon on Friday, 
March 17, 2023, on the City's website 
https;llotsan-femando,ca.ust and at 

. the City Clerk's Office, 117 Macnell. 
Street, San Fernando, CA 91340. 
Qu8811ons may be AmllT9d to Man
agement Analyst, Kenneth Jones at 
kjonesctsfcl!y.org. Please refer to 
File: Financing of Energy Services 
Contract. lhe Public Hearing will I 
be held In the City Council Chamber, , 
117 Macneil Street, San Fernando, 
California 91340 on March 20, 2023, 

• at 6:00 p.m. or as soon thereafter as 
the matter may be heard. At that 
time, any Interested person Is wel
come to attend and be heard on this 
matter. In accordance with the Amer
icans with Disabilities Act of 1990, If 
you niqulre a dlsablllty-relaled modi
fication/accommodation to attend or 
participate in this meeting, Including 
auxiliary aids or services please call 
the City Clerk Department .at (818) 
898-1204 at least 48 hours prior to 
the meeting. 
Dated this 23rd day of February 2023 
City of san Fernando, California 
ls/Julia Fritz, City Clel1< 
Published in th11 Sun New9pllper on 
February 23, 2023 
l13160 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 102 of 137



March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 103 of 137



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 104 of 137



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT           117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340           (818) 898-1227           WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☐ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Celeste T. Rodriguez and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By:  Kanika Kith, Director of Community Development 
  Kenya Marquez, Housing Coordinator 
 
Date:  March 20, 2023 
 
Subject: Consideration and Discussion to Receive and File the General Plan Housing 

Element Annual Progress Report for Calendar Year 2022 and to Authorize Staff to 
Submit Said Report to the California Department of Housing and Community 
Development and the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council:  

a. Receive and file the General Plan Housing Element Annual Progress Report for Calendar Year 
2022 (Attachment “A); and  

b. Authorize staff to submit the Housing Element Annual Progress Report to the California 
Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) and the Governor’s Office of 
Planning and Research (OPR). 

 
BACKGROUND: 

1. Since 1969, the State has required all cities and counties in California to adopt a Housing 
Element to adequately plan to accommodate each jurisdiction’s fair share of housing needs 
in California. The Housing Element is a chapter of the General Plan that serves as each 
jurisdiction’s blueprint for how it plans to grow and develop during a particular “planning 
cycle.”  
 

2. State law requires that the Housing Element be updated every eight years, including policies 
and programs to meet existing and future housing needs for the City, as established by the 
California Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD).   
 

3. The Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG) is responsible for assigning the 
Regional Housing Needs Assessment (RHNA) allocation in Los Angeles, Orange, Riverside, San 
Bernardino, Imperial, and Ventura counties (197 jurisdictions, including San Fernando).   

ANill 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 105 of 137



Consideration and Discussion to Receive and File the General Plan Housing Element Annual Progress 
Report for Calendar Year 2022 and to Authorize Staff to Submit Said Report to the California 
Department of Housing and Community Development and the Governor’s Office of Planning and 
Research  
Page 2 of 5 
 
 
4. On January 1, 2018, as a result of California Senate Bill 35 (SB 35), streamlining provisions 

went into effect for cities that were not meeting their goals for construction of certain 
regional housing needs. SB 35 amended Government Code Section 65913.4 to require local 
jurisdictions to streamline the approval of certain housing projects by providing a ministerial 
approval process and removing the requirements for California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) analysis. 

 
5. On June 6, 2022, the City Council adopted the 2021-2029 (6th Cycle) Housing Element that 

established the City's strategy for meeting community housing needs for RHNA housing 
planning period 2021-2029.   

 
6. On August 9, 2022, HCD certified the City’s 2021-2029 Housing Element as being in full 

compliance with State housing law.  
 

7. On March 13, 2023, the General Plan Housing Element Annual Progress Report was presented 
as an informational item to the Planning and Preservation Commission. 

 
ANALYSIS: 

The Housing Element Annual Progress Report provides the status and progress of each 
jurisdiction’s implementation of its housing element on an annual basis.  Government Code 
Section 65400 establishes the requirement that each jurisdiction prepare an annual report on 
the status of its Housing Element for the prior calendar year, and the actions taken towards 
completion of the programs and status of the jurisdiction’s compliance with the deadlines in its 
Housing Element.  Each jurisdiction is required to submit an Annual Progress Report to HCD and 
the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research (OPR) no later than April 1 of each year, reporting 
data for the prior calendar year.  

The 2022 Annual Progress Report (Attachment “A”) reflects the City's progress during the first 
year of the 6th Cycle Housing Element, RHNA planning period from October 16, 2021 to December 
31, 2022.  In 2022, the City received 38 planning applications for new housing units, approved 41 
new housing units, issued 49 building permits, and performed 19 final inspections1.  Table 1 
below shows a breakdown of the units and their affordability levels.  

 

                                                 
1 A certificate of occupancy is issued when a new unit completes construction and passes final inspection by the 
City. 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 106 of 137



Consideration and Discussion to Receive and File the General Plan Housing Element Annual Progress 
Report for Calendar Year 2022 and to Authorize Staff to Submit Said Report to the California 
Department of Housing and Community Development and the Governor’s Office of Planning and 
Research  
Page 3 of 5 
 
 
Table 1: Summary of Planning Approvals, Building Permits, and Certificate of Occupancy 2022. 

 

 

HCD has set an ambitious housing production goal for the 6th Cycle by both HCD and SCAG. These 
goals represent a 325 percent increase in the SCAG region, and an increase of 827 percent locally 
for the City of San Fernando. On October 26, 2020, staff submitted an appeal request to SCAG 
seeking a reduction in its allocation.  Staff cited local planning factors such as job-housing 
balance, sewer and water infrastructure constraints, availability of land, and a disproportionate 
allocation compared to the rest of the region. Ultimately, the City’s appeal was denied and the 
City was provided a final allocation of 1,795 units.  

~ 

Completed EntiUement Issued by Al'fordllbilttv Summary 

Income Level Current Year 

Very Low 
Deed Restricted 0 
Non-Deed Restricted 1 
Deed Restricted 0 

Low 
Non-Deed Restricted 22 

Deed Restricted 0 
Moderate 

Non-Deed Restri.cted 5 
Above Moderate 10 

Total Units 38 

Building Permits Issued bv Affordability Summary 

Income Level Current Year 

Very Low 
Deed Restricted 0 
Non-Deed Restricted 3 

Low 
Deed Restricted 0 
Non-Deed Restricted 22 

Moderate 
Deed Restricted 0 
Non-Deed Restricted 13 

Above Moderate 11 

Totall Units 49 

Certificate of Occunaney Issued bv Affordabllty Summary 

Income Level Current Year 

Very Low 
Deed Restricted 0 
Non-Deed Restricted 0 

Low 
Deed Restricted 0 
Non-Deed Restricted 16 

Moderate 
Deed Restricted 0 
Non-Deed Restricted 2 

Above Moderate 1 

Total Units 19 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 107 of 137



Consideration and Discussion to Receive and File the General Plan Housing Element Annual Progress 
Report for Calendar Year 2022 and to Authorize Staff to Submit Said Report to the California 
Department of Housing and Community Development and the Governor’s Office of Planning and 
Research  
Page 4 of 5 
 
 
As presented in Table 2 below, the City was allocated a total RHNA of 1,795 units for the 6th Cycle 
planning period. During the first planning period, the City issued a total of 49 residential building 
permits. However, under Senate Bill 35 (SB 35) cities must meet the proportionate share of the 
RHNA for each of the five income levels (extremely low, very low, low, moderate, and above 
moderate). The City has seven additional years to meet all income level categories.   

Table 2: Regional Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA) Progress: 2022-2029.  

 
The City will need to maintain zoning that makes sites available for a mix of single-family, multi-
family and mixed-use housing, supported by a variety of programs to enhance affordability, to 
accommodate remaining RHNA targets. The City continues to actively implement goals, policies 
and programs of the Housing Element. Furthermore, the adoption of the San Fernando Corridors 
Specific Plan (SP-5) in December 2017, the recent state legislation mandating jurisdictions to 
allow for Junior ADU’s (JADU)2, and the adoption of Ordinance No. 1714 for urban lot splits and 
two-unit development projects in single-family residential (R-1) zones for implementing Senate 
Bill 9 adopted by the City Council on February 6, 2023, will continue to foster housing and address 
the RHNA allocation targets for each income level.  

                                                 
2 A Junior ADU allows for a portion of an existing primary dwelling to be converted to an additional dwelling unit, 
up to a maximum of 500 square feet. 

Income Level 
2022-2029 

RHNA 
Allocation 

Building Permits Issued Per Year Total 
Units 

to 
Date  

Remaining 
RHNA 
Target 

2022* 2023 2024 
 

2025 2026 2027 
 

2028 
 

2029 
Extremely Low 
(0 to 30% of AMI) 230 0 - - - - - - - 0 230 

Very Low 
(30% to 50% of 
AMI) 

231 3 - - - - - - - 3 228 

Low 
(50% to 80% of 
AMI) 

273 22 - - - - - - - 22 251 

Moderate  
(81% of AMI) 284 13 - - - - - - - 13 271 

Above Moderate 
(> 80% of AMI) 777 11 - - - - - - - 11 766 

Total 1,795 49 - - - - - - - 49 1,746 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 108 of 137



Consideration and Discussion to Receive and File the General Plan Housing Element Annual Progress 
Report for Calendar Year 2022 and to Authorize Staff to Submit Said Report to the California 
Department of Housing and Community Development and the Governor’s Office of Planning and 
Research  
Page 5 of 5 
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 

Preparation of the Housing Element Annual Progress Report is included in the annual work 
program for the Community Development Department. Therefore, funding for the effort is 
included in the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Adopted Budget.   
 
 
CONCLUSION: 

Staff recommends that the City Council receive and file the Housing Element Annual Progress 
Report for Calendar Year 2022; and authorize staff to submit the Housing Element Annual 
Progress Report to California Department of Housing and Community Development and the 
Governor’s Office of Planning and Research. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: 

A. Housing Element Annual Progress Report for Calendar Year 2022 
 

 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 109 of 137



Jurisidiction Name

Reporting Calendar Year

First Name

Last Name

Title Click here to download APR Instructions

Email

Phone

Street Address

City

Zipcode
1_23_23

117 N MACNEIL

San Fernando

91340

KITH

DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

KKITH@SFCITY.ORG

8188987316

Mailing Address

Please Start Here

General Information 

San Fernando
Optional: Click here to import last year's data. This is best used 

when the workbook is new and empty. You will be prompted to pick 

an old workbook to import from.  Project and program data will be 

copied exactly how it was entered in last year's form and must be 

updated. If a project is no longer has any reportable activity, you 

may delete the project by selecting a cell in the row and typing ctrl 

+ d.

2022

Contact Information

KANIKA

Import Last Year's Data

Annual Progress Report  January 2020

ATTACHMENT A

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 110 of 137

https://www.hcd.ca.gov/community-development/housing-element/docs/housing-element-annual-progress-report-instructions.pdf


Jurisdiction San Fernando

Reporting Year 2022 (Jan. 1 - Dec. 31)

Planning Period 6th Cycle 10/15/2021 - 10/15/2029

Current Year

Deed Restricted 0

Non-Deed Restricted 3

Deed Restricted 0

Non-Deed Restricted 22

Deed Restricted 0

Non-Deed Restricted 13

11

49

Units by Structure Type Entitled Permitted Completed

SFA 0 0 0

SFD 1 2 0

2 to 4 3 4 0

5+ 0 0 0

ADU 34 43 19

MH 0 0 0

Total 38 49 19

39

41

41

0

0

0

0

0

Income Rental Ownership Total

Very Low 0 0 0

Low 0 0 0

Moderate 0 0 0

Above Moderate 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0

Cells in grey contain auto-calculation formulas

Number of Applications for Streamlining

Number of Streamlining Applications Approved

Total Developments Approved with Streamlining

Total Units Constructed with Streamlining

Units Constructed - SB 35 Streamlining Permits

Total Housing Applications Submitted:

Number of Proposed Units in All Applications Received:

Total Housing Units Approved:

Total Housing Units Disapproved:

Use of SB 35 Streamlining Provisions

Moderate

Above Moderate

Total Units

Note: Units serving extremely low-income households are included in the very low-income permitted units totals

Housing Applications Summary

Building Permits Issued by Affordability Summary

Income Level

Very Low

Low

ATTACHMENT A

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 111 of 137



Date 

Application 

Submitted

2 3 4 6

Prior APN
+ Current APN Street Address Project Name

+ Local Jurisdiction 

Tracking ID
+

Unit Category

(SFA,SFD,2 to 

4,5+,ADU,MH)

Tenure

R=Renter

O=Owner

Date 

Application 

Submitted+

(see 

instructions)

Very Low-

Income Deed 

Restricted

Very Low-

Income Non 

Deed 

Restricted

Low-Income 

Deed 

Restricted

Low-Income 

Non Deed 

Restricted

Moderate-

Income Deed 

Restricted

Moderate- 

Income   

Non Deed 

Restricted

Above

Moderate-

Income

Total PROPOSED 

Units by Project

Summary Row: Start Data Entry Below 0 1 0 23 0 6 11 41

2521-029-002 1106 CORONEL ST PL2103795 ADU R 10/27/2021 1 1

2516-007-005 921 N HUNTINGTON ST PL2103814 ADU R 10/28/2021 1 1

2521-029-001 1100 CORONEL ST PL2103809 ADU R 10/28/2021 1 1

2519-008-016 436 N MACNEIL ST PL2103810 ADU R 10/28/2021 1 1

2515-020-021 853 NEWTON ST PL2103818 ADU R 10/29/2021 1 1

2520-013-018 215 N WORKMAN ST PL2103881 ADU R 11/3/2021 1 1

2516-002-014 1715 GLENOAKS BLVD PL2103824 ADU R 10/29/2021 1 1

2518-016-008 545 HUNTINGTON ST PL2104005 ADU R 11/10/2021 1 1

2516-016-040 1812 EIGHTH ST PL2104129 ADU R 11/18/2021 1 1

2518-013-015 1520 FIFTH ST PL2104164 ADU R 11/22/2021 1 1

2516-009-005 1614 SEVENTH ST PL2104199 ADU R 11/24/2021 1 1

2518-003-022 448 FERMOORE ST PL2104353 ADU R 12/9/2021 1 1

2613-005-033 1016 OMELVENY AVE PL2104383 ADU R 12/13/2021 1 1

2517-022-069 467 FAYECROFT ST PL2103032 ADU R 12/15/2021 1 1

2517-006-014 1948 PHILLIPPI ST PL2104426 ADU R 12/15/2021 1 1

2516-019-007 1120 EIGHTH ST PL2104411 ADU R 12/15/2021 1 1

2517-018-030 2005 FIFTH ST PL2104413 ADU R 12/15/2021 1 1

2520-012-016 1715 SECOND ST PL2200068 ADU R 1/6/2022 1 1

2521-009-005 1419 GRIFFITH ST PL2200203 ADU R 1/18/2022 1 1

2515-028-009 901 SEVENTH ST PL2200423 ADU R 2/3/2022 1 1

2521-036-005 1226 GRIFFITH ST PL2200428 ADU R 2/3/2022 1 1

2516-008-004 1824 SEVENTH ST PL2200450 ADU R 2/7/2022 1 1

2513-002-034 2041  EIGHTH ST PL2200859 ADU R 3/8/2022 1 1

2522-022-013 710 HOLLISTER ST PL2201072 ADU R 3/24/2022 1 1

2521-009-006 1425 GRIFFITH ST PL2201090 ADU R 3/25/2022 1 1

2522-012-019 557 CHATSWORTH DR PL2201258 ADU R 4/5/2022 1 1

2516-017-031 1521 KNOX ST PL2201285 ADU R 4/6/2022 1 1

2516-026-014 1414 SEVENTH ST PL2201403 ADU R 4/15/2022 1 1

2517-008-002 1011 ORANGE GROVE AVE PL2201521 ADU R 4/25/2022 1 1

2518-007-011 446 N ALEXANDER ST PL2201768 ADU R 5/10/2022 1 1

2517-027-019 512 N LAZARD ST PL2201777 ADU R 5/11/2022 1 1

2520-014-003 1512 FOURTH ST PL2201779 ADU R 5/11/2022 1 1

2517-002-009 1928 EIGHTH ST PL2201946 ADU R 5/23/2022 1 1

2516-001-006 858 ORANGE GROVE AVE PL2201949 ADU R 5/23/2022 1 1

2612-022-009 659 LASHBURN ST PL2201982 ADU R 5/25/2022 1 1

2613-009-018 1233 OMELVENY AVE PL2201998 ADU R 5/27/2022 1 1

2516-020-016 1327 PHILLIPPI ST PL2202093 ADU R 6/3/2022 1 1

2518-014-014 515 N WORKMAN ST PL2202174 ADU R 6/8/2022 1 1

2515-012-005 722 DE HAVEN ST PL2202192 ADU R 6/9/2022 1 1

2520-014-014 1513 SECOND ST PL2202193 ADU R 6/9/2022 3 3

2515-021-019 869 GRISWOLD  AVE PL2202284 ADU R 6/14/2022 1 1

2521-008-013 1416 HEWITT ST PL2202282 ADU R 6/15/2022 1 1

2515-003-004 651 NEWTON ST PL2202466 ADU R 6/30/2022 1 1

2516-029-031 1121 LUCAS ST PL2202356 ADU R 6/22/2022 1 1

2517-004-011 1932 KNOX ST PL2202461 ADU R 6/30/2022 1 1

2522-011-024 609 CHATSWORTH DR PL2202482 ADU R 7/5/2022 1 1

2515-018-013 916 MACNEIL ST PL2202639 ADU R 7/18/2022 1 1

1 5

Project Identifier Unit Types Proposed Units - Affordability by Household Incomes 

ATTACHMENT A

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 112 of 137



2515-003-003 657 NEWTON ST PL2203341 ADU R 9/8/2022 1 1

2518-008-010 412 N HAGAR ST PL2202921 ADU R 8/8/2022 1 1

2520-014-020 225 HARDING AVE PL2203876 ADU R 9/15/2022 1 1

2516-020-007 1312 KNOX ST PL2203686 ADU R 9/28/2022 1 1

2516-031-007 823 ALEXANDER ST PL2203998 ADU R 10/21/2022 1 1

2518-005-014 438 HARDING ST PL2204052 ADU R 10/26/2022 1 1

2612-014-005 672 JACKMAN AVE PL2204053 ADU R 10/26/2022 1 1

2613-001-026 616 MOTT ST PL2204101 ADU R 10/31/2022 1 1

2519-021-011 671 FOURTH ST PL2300084 ADU R 12/22/2022 1 1

ATTACHMENT A

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 113 of 137



Jurisdiction San Fernando ANNUAL ELEMENT PROGRESS REPORT
Reporting Year 2022 (Jan. 1 - Dec. 31) Housing Element Implementation
Planning Period 6th Cycle 10/15/2021 - 10/15/2029

Table A2

2 3 5 6

Prior APN
+ Current APN Street Address Project Name

+
Local Jurisdiction 

Tracking ID
+

Unit Category    

(SFA,SFD,2 to 

4,5+,ADU,MH)

Tenure

R=Renter

O=Owner

Very Low- 

Income Deed 

Restricted

Very Low- 

Income   Non 

Deed Restricted

Low- Income 

Deed Restricted

Low- Income   

Non Deed 

Restricted

Moderate- 

Income Deed 

Restricted

Moderate- 

Income Non 

Deed Restricted

Above

Moderate-

Income

Entitlement

Date Approved
# of Units issued 

Entitlements

Summary Row: Start Data Entry Below 0 1 0 22 0 5 10 38

2516-013-007 1620 Fermoore Drive BS2104384 ADU R 1 8/16/2021 1

2516-002-020 827 Fermoore Street BS2200670 ADU R 1 8/25/2021 1

2612-021-002 613 Jackman Street BS2200975 ADU R 1 11/22/2021 1

2518-029-021 755 Hagar Street BS2201129 ADU R 1 8/10/2021 1

2516-023-033 1020 Harding Avenue BS2201234 ADU R 1 6/3/2021 1

2522-019-025 703 Pico Street BS2104152 ADU R 1 6/9/2021 1

2515-014-022 755 N. Brand Blvd BS2201532 SFD R 1 6/17/2021 1

2518-005-016 445 Harps Street BS2201728 ADU R 1 8/17/2021 1

2518-005-016 443 Harps Street BS2201589 2 to 4 R 4 8/17/2021 4

2521-023-023 1228 Hollister Street BS2104304 ADU R 1 10/11/2021 1

2516-009-005 1616 Seventh Street BS2200549 ADU R 1 11/24/2021 1

2521-009-005 1421 Griffith Street BS2200881 ADU R 1 1/18/2022 1

2518-009-010 528 Hagar Street BS2103869 ADU R 1 6/28/2021 1

2517-027-019 512 N. Lazard Street #A BS2202694 ADU R 1 7/4/2022 1

2612-023-011 811 Lashburn Street BS222968 ADU R 1 7/26/2021 1

2516-029-031 1121 Lucas Street #A BS2203044 ADU R 1 7/14/2022 1

2517-022-069 469 Fayecroft Street BS2104190 ADU R 1 12/15/2021 1

2517-004-006 1127 Orange Grove Avenue BS2104097 ADU R 1 6/24/2021 1

2518-016-008 547 N. Huntington Street BS2200682 ADU R 1 11/10/2021 1

2516-007-005 923 N. Huntington Street BS2200842 ADU R 1 10/28/2021 1

2521-036-005 1228 Griffith Street BS2201095 ADU R 1 2/3/2022 1

2516-014-013 1046 N. Workman Street BS2104315 ADU R 1 12/7/2021 1

2520-012-016 1717 Second Street BS2201868 ADU R 1 1/6/2022 1

2516-023-020 1408 Mountain View Street BS2200491 ADU R 1 10/5/2021 1

2520-013-018 217 N. Workman Street BS2201913 ADU R 1 11/3/2021 1

2613-002-035 615 O'Melveny Street BS2104463 ADU R 1 3/29/2021 1

2520-014-003 1514 Fourth Street BS2201786 ADU R 1 5/11/2022 1

2517-009-020 2019 Warren Street BS2202605 ADU R 1 12/14/2021 1

2517-017-023 725 N. Meyer Street BS2104070 ADU R 1 3/6/2019 1

2519-008-016 438 Macneil Street BS2200690 ADU R 1 10/28/2021 1

2522-012-019 559 Chatsworth Drive BS2201841 ADU R 1 4/5/2022 1

2516-021-009 1315 Mountain View Street BS2203560 ADU R 1 8/2/2022 1

2516-020-016 1329 Phillippi Street BS2203557 ADU R 1 6/3/2022 1

2515-012-015 721 De Garmo Street BS2104206 ADU R 1 4/26/2021 1

2515-020-021 855 Newton Street BS2201041 ADU R 1 11/2/2021 1

2515-021-027 829 Griswold Avenue BS2104326 ADU R 1 8/25/2021 1

2613-002-064 624 O'Melveny Avenue BS2103740 ADU R 1 7/26/2021 1

2516-017-011 1167 Harding Avenue BS2201241 ADU R 1 7/29/2021 1

2521-008-013 1418 Hewitt Street BS2202115 ADU R 1 7/28/2022 1

2516-002-014 1717 Glenoaks Blvd. BS2202516 ADU R 1 3/23/2022 1

2518-007-011 448 Alexander Street #B BS2204642 ADU R 1 5/10/2022 1

1 4

Annual Building Activity Report Summary - New Construction, Entitled, Permits and Completed Units

Project Identifier Unit Types Affordability by Household Incomes - Completed Entitlement

ATTACHMENT A

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 114 of 137



Jurisdiction San Fernando ANNUAL ELEMENT PROGRESS REPORT
Reporting Year 2022 (Jan. 1 - Dec. 31) Housing Element Implementation
Planning Period 6th Cycle 10/15/2021 - 10/15/2029

2521-009-006 1427 Griffith Street BS2204741 ADU R 1 4/4/2022 1

2521-029-001 1102 Coronel Street BS2204330 ADU R 1 10/28/2021 1

2522-011-024 611 Chatsworth Drive BS2204813 ADU R 1 7/5/2022 1

2517-006-014 1950 Phillippi Street BS2201155 ADU R 1 12/15/2021 1

2516-019-007 1122 Eighth Street BS2204844 ADU R 1 2/22/2022 1

2516-026-014 1416 Seventh Street BS2202358 ADU R 1 4/15/2022 1

2522-022-013 702 Hollister Street BS2204826 SFD R 1 5/5/2022 1

2515-012-005 724 De Haven Street BS2202638 ADU R 1 6/9/2022 1

2513-002-034 2039 Eighth Street BS2202025 ADU R 1 3/8/2022 1

2517-002-009 1930 Eighth Street BS2202839 ADU R 1 6/3/2022 1

2518-002-010 1707 Fourth Street BS2204070 ADU R 1 3/11/2021 1

2518-013-015 1522 Fifth Street BS2202410 ADU R 1 11/24/2021 1

2515-018-013 918 Macneil Street BS2204385 ADU R 1 8/16/2022 1

2516-016-040 1812 Eighth St. PL2104129 ADU R 1 11/18/2021 1

2518-003-022 448 Fermoore St PL2104353 ADU R 1 12/9/2021 1

2613-005-033 1016 O Melveny Ave. PL2104383 ADU R 1 1/10/2022 1

2517-018-030 2005 Fifth St. PL2104413 ADU R 1 1/18/2022 1

2515-028-009 901 Seventh St. PL2200423 ADU R 1 2/3/2022 1

2516-008-004 1824 Seventh St. PL2200450 ADU R 1 2/7/2022 1

2516-017-031 1521 Knox St. PL2201285 ADU R 1 4/18/2022 1

2517-008-002 1011 Orange Grove Rd. PL2201521 ADU R 1 4/25/2022 1

2516-001-006 858 Orange Grove Ave. PL2201949 ADU R 1 7/1/2022 1

2612-022-009 659 Lashburn St. PL2201982 ADU R 1 9/15/2022 1

2613-009-018 1233 O Melveny Ave. PL2201998 ADU R 1 6/10/2022 1

2518-014-014 515 N Workman St. PL2202174 ADU R 1 6/10/2022 1

2520-014-014 1512 Second St. PL2202193 2 to 4 R 3 6/9/2022 3

2515-021-019 869 Griswold Ave. PL2202284 ADU R 1 7/18/2022 1

2515-003-004 651 Newton St. PL2202466 ADU R 1 7/28/2022 1

2517-004-011 1932 Knox St. PL2202461 ADU R 1 6/30/2022 1

2515-003-003 657 Newton St. PL2203341 ADU R 1 12/16/2022 1

2521-029-002 1106 CORONEL ST PL2103795 ADU R 10/27/2021 0

ATTACHMENT A

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 115 of 137



Jurisdiction San Fernando

Reporting Year 2022 (Jan. 1 - Dec. 31) Cells in grey contain auto-calculation formulas

Planning Period 6th Cycle 10/15/2021 - 10/15/2029

2 3 8 9

Prior APN
+ Current APN Street Address Project Name

+
Local Jurisdiction 

Tracking ID
+

Unit Category    

(SFA,SFD,2 to 

4,5+,ADU,MH)

Tenure

R=Renter

O=Owner

Very Low- 

Income Deed 

Restricted

Very Low- 

Income   Non 

Deed Restricted

Low- Income 

Deed 

Restricted

Low- Income   

Non Deed 

Restricted

Moderate- 

Income Deed 

Restricted

Moderate- 

Income Non 

Deed Restricted

Above

Moderate-

Income

Building Permits 

Date Issued

# of Units Issued 

Building Permits 

Summary Row: Start Data Entry Below 0 3 0 22 0 13 11 49

2516-013-007 1620 Fermoore Drive BS2104384 ADU R 1 1/3/2022 1

2516-002-020 827 Fermoore Street BS2200670 ADU R 1 2/25/2022 1

2612-021-002 613 Jackman Street BS2200975 ADU R 1 3/17/2022 1

2518-029-021 755 Hagar Street BS2201129 ADU R 1 3/30/2022 1

2516-023-033 1020 Harding Avenue BS2201234 ADU R 1 4/5/2022 1

2522-019-025 703 Pico Street BS2104152 ADU R 1 4/7/2022 1

2515-014-022 755 N. Brand Blvd BS2201532 SFD R 1 4/25/2022 1

2518-005-016 445 Harps Street BS2201728 ADU R 1 5/11/2022 1

2518-005-016 443 Harps Street BS2201589 2 to 4 R 4 5/11/2022 4

2521-023-023 1228 Hollister Street BS2104304 ADU R 1 12/9/2022 1

2516-009-005 1616 Seventh Street BS2200549 ADU R 1 2/15/2022 1

2521-009-005 1421 Griffith Street BS2200881 ADU R 1 3/10/2022 1

2518-009-010 528 Hagar Street BS2103869 ADU R 1 11/16/2021 1

2517-027-019 512 N. Lazard Street #A BS2202694 ADU R 1 8/4/2022 1

2612-023-011 811 Lashburn Street BS222968 ADU R 1 8/12/2022 1

2516-029-031 1121 Lucas Street #A BS2203044 ADU R 1 8/18/2022 1

2517-022-069 469 Fayecroft Street BS2104190 ADU R 1 11/29/2021 1

2517-004-006 1127 Orange Grove Avenue BS2104097 ADU R 1 11/22/2021 1

2518-016-008 547 N. Huntington Street BS2200682 ADU R 1 2/25/2022 1

2516-007-005 923 N. Huntington Street BS2200842 ADU R 1 3/8/2022 1

2521-036-005 1228 Griffith Street BS2201095 ADU R 1 3/28/2022 1

2516-014-013 1046 N. Workman Street BS2104315 ADU R 1 12/7/2021 1

2520-012-016 1717 Second Street BS2201868 ADU R 1 5/24/2022 1

2516-023-020 1408 Mountain View Street BS2200491 ADU R 1 2/10/2022 1

2520-013-018 217 N. Workman Street BS2201913 ADU R 1 5/25/2022 1

2613-002-035 615 O'Melveny Street BS2104463 ADU R 1 2/9/2022 1

2520-014-003 1514 Fourth Street BS2201786 ADU R 1 5/12/2022 1

2517-009-020 2019 Warren Street BS2202605 ADU R 1 8/9/2022 1

2517-017-023 725 N. Meyer Street BS2104070 ADU R 1 11/16/2021 1

2519-008-016 438 Macneil Street BS2200690 ADU R 1 2/25/2022 1

2522-012-019 559 Chatsworth Drive BS2201841 ADU R 1 5/17/2022 1

2516-021-009 1315 Mountain View Street BS2203560 ADU R 1 9/23/2022 1

2516-020-016 1329 Phillippi Street BS2203557 ADU R 1 9/27/2022 1

2515-012-015 721 De Garmo Street BS2104206 ADU R 1 12/5/2021 1

2515-020-021 855 Newton Street BS2201041 ADU R 1 3/29/2022 1

2515-021-027 829 Griswold Avenue BS2104326 ADU R 1 12/20/2021 1

2613-002-064 624 O'Melveny Avenue BS2103740 ADU R 1 10/25/2021 1

2516-017-011 1167 Harding Avenue BS2201241 ADU R 1 4/6/2022 1

2521-008-013 1418 Hewitt Street BS2202115 ADU R 1 11/14/2022 1

2516-002-014 1717 Glenoaks Blvd. BS2202516 ADU R 1 7/15/2022 1

2518-007-011 448 Alexander Street #B BS2204642 ADU R 1 12/7/2022 1

1 7

Note: "+" indicates an optional field

mary - New Construction, E

Project Identifier Unit Types Affordability by Household Incomes - Building Permits

ATTACHMENT A

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 116 of 137



Jurisdiction San Fernando

Reporting Year 2022 (Jan. 1 - Dec. 31) Cells in grey contain auto-calculation formulas

Planning Period 6th Cycle 10/15/2021 - 10/15/2029

Note: "+" indicates an optional field

2521-009-006 1427 Griffith Street BS2204741 ADU R 1 12/15/2022 1

2521-029-001 1102 Coronel Street BS2204330 ADU R 1 12/20/2022 1

2522-011-024 611 Chatsworth Drive BS2204813 ADU R 1 12/21/2022 1

2517-006-014 1950 Phillippi Street BS2201155 ADU R 1 4/7/2022 1

2516-019-007 1122 Eighth Street BS2204844 ADU R 1 12/22/2022 1

2516-026-014 1416 Seventh Street BS2202358 ADU R 1 6/22/2022 1

2522-022-013 702 Hollister Street BS2204826 SFD R 1 12/27/2022 1

2515-012-005 724 De Haven Street BS2202638 ADU R 1 7/19/2022 1

2513-002-034 2039 Eighth Street BS2202025 ADU R 1 6/2/2022 1

2517-002-009 1930 Eighth Street BS2202839 ADU R 1 8/3/2022 1

2518-002-010 1707 Fourth Street BS2204070 ADU R 1 10/31/2022 1

2518-013-015 1522 Fifth Street BS2202410 ADU R 1 8/10/2022 1

2515-018-013 918 Macneil Street BS2204385 ADU R 1 11/28/2022 1

ATTACHMENT A

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 117 of 137



Jurisdiction San Fernando

Reporting Year 2022 (Jan. 1 - Dec. 31)

Planning Period 6th Cycle 10/15/2021 - 10/15/2029

Streamlining

2 3 11 12 13 14

Prior APN
+ Current APN Street Address Project Name

+
Local Jurisdiction 

Tracking ID
+

Unit Category    

(SFA,SFD,2 to 

4,5+,ADU,MH)

Tenure

R=Renter

O=Owner

Very Low- 

Income Deed 

Restricted

Very Low- 

Income   Non 

Deed 

Restricted

Low- Income 

Deed 

Restricted

Low- Income  

Non Deed 

Restricted

Moderate- 

Income Deed 

Restricted

Moderate- 

Income Non 

Deed 

Restricted

Above

Moderate-

Income

Certificates of 

Occupancy or other 

forms of readiness      

(see instructions)    

Date Issued

# of  Units 

issued 

Certificates of 

Occupancy or 

other forms of 

readiness

How many of 

the units were 

Extremely Low 

Income?
+

Was Project    

APPROVED using 

GC 65913.4(b)?  

(SB 35 

Streamlining)       

Y/N

Summary Row: Start Data Entry Below 0 0 0 16 0 2 1 19 0 0

2516-013-007 1620 Fermoore Drive BS2104384 ADU R 0 0 N

2516-002-020 827 Fermoore Street BS2200670 ADU R 0 0 N

2612-021-002 613 Jackman Street BS2200975 ADU R 0 0 N

2518-029-021 755 Hagar Street BS2201129 ADU R 0 0 N

2516-023-033 1020 Harding Avenue BS2201234 ADU R 0 0 N

2522-019-025 703 Pico Street BS2104152 ADU R 0 0 N

2515-014-022 755 N. Brand Blvd BS2201532 SFD R 0 0 N

2518-005-016 445 Harps Street BS2201728 ADU R 0 0 N

2518-005-016 443 Harps Street BS2201589 2 to 4 R 0 0 N

2521-023-023 1228 Hollister Street BS2104304 ADU R 1 5/22/2022 1 0 N

2516-009-005 1616 Seventh Street BS2200549 ADU R 1 6/21/2022 1 0 N

2521-009-005 1421 Griffith Street BS2200881 ADU R 1 6/22/2022 1 0 N

2518-009-010 528 Hagar Street BS2103869 ADU R 1 6/28/2022 1 0 N

2517-027-019 512 N. Lazard Street #A BS2202694 ADU R 0 0 N

2612-023-011 811 Lashburn Street BS222968 ADU R 0 0 N

2516-029-031 1121 Lucas Street #A BS2203044 ADU R 0 0 N

2517-022-069 469 Fayecroft Street BS2104190 ADU R 1 8/25/2022 1 0 N

2517-004-006 1127 Orange Grove Avenue BS2104097 ADU R 1 8/24/2022 1 0 N

2518-016-008 547 N. Huntington Street BS2200682 ADU R 0 0 N

2516-007-005 923 N. Huntington Street BS2200842 ADU R 0 0 N

2521-036-005 1228 Griffith Street BS2201095 ADU R 0 0 N

2516-014-013 1046 N. Workman Street BS2104315 ADU R 1 3/28/2022 1 0 N

2520-012-016 1717 Second Street BS2201868 ADU R 0 0 N

2516-023-020 1408 Mountain View Street BS2200491 ADU R 1 5/24/2022 1 0 N

2520-013-018 217 N. Workman Street BS2201913 ADU R 0 0 N

2613-002-035 615 O'Melveny Street BS2104463 ADU R 1 6/23/2022 1 0 N

2520-014-003 1514 Fourth Street BS2201786 ADU R 1 7/29/2022 1 0 N

2517-009-020 2019 Warren Street BS2202605 ADU R 0 0 N

2517-017-023 725 N. Meyer Street BS2104070 ADU R 1 9/1/2022 1 0 N

2519-008-016 438 Macneil Street BS2200690 ADU R 1 9/12/2022 1 0 N

2522-012-019 559 Chatsworth Drive BS2201841 ADU R 1 9/12/2022 1 0 N

2516-021-009 1315 Mountain View Street BS2203560 ADU R 0 0 N

2516-020-016 1329 Phillippi Street BS2203557 ADU R 0 0 N

2515-012-015 721 De Garmo Street BS2104206 ADU R 1 9/28/2022 1 0 N

2515-020-021 855 Newton Street BS2201041 ADU R 1 9/29/2022 1 0 N

2515-021-027 829 Griswold Avenue BS2104326 ADU R 1 10/4/2022 1 0 N

2613-002-064 624 O'Melveny Avenue BS2103740 ADU R 0 0 N

2516-017-011 1167 Harding Avenue BS2201241 ADU R 1 11/7/2022 1 0 N

2521-008-013 1418 Hewitt Street BS2202115 ADU R 0 0 N

2516-002-014 1717 Glenoaks Blvd. BS2202516 ADU R 1 11/23/2022 1 0 N

2518-007-011 448 Alexander Street #B BS2204642 ADU R 0 0 N

2521-009-006 1427 Griffith Street BS2204741 ADU R 0 0 N

2521-029-001 1102 Coronel Street BS2204330 ADU R 0 0 N

2522-011-024 611 Chatsworth Drive BS2204813 ADU R 0 0 N

2517-006-014 1950 Phillippi Street BS2201155 ADU R 1 12/22/2022 1 0 N

Affordability by Household Incomes - Certificates of Occupancy

1 10

mary - New Construction, E

Project Identifier Unit Types

ATTACHMENT A

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 118 of 137



Jurisdiction San Fernando ANNUAL ELEMENT PROGRESS REPORT

Reporting Year 2022 (Jan. 1 - Dec. 31) Housing Element Implementation
Planning Period 6th Cycle 10/15/2021 - 10/15/2029

1 Projection Period 3 4

RHNA Allocation by 

Income Level

Projection Period - 

06/30/2021-

10/14/2021

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029
Total Units to 

Date (all years)

Total Remaining 

RHNA by Income 

Level

Deed Restricted                               -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -   

Non-Deed Restricted                               -                             -                              3                           -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -   

Deed Restricted                               -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -   

Non-Deed Restricted                              15                          10                          22                           -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -   

Deed Restricted                               -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -   

Non-Deed Restricted                               -                             -                            13                           -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -   

Above Moderate                                      777                                3                            2                          11                           -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                            16                                761 

                                  1,795 

                             18                          12                          49                           -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                            79                     1,716 

5 6 7

Extremely low-Income 

Need 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029
Total Units to 

Date

Total Units 

Remaining

                                     231                           -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                          231 

Note: units serving extremely low-income households are included in the very low-income RHNA progress and must be reported as very low-income units in section 7 of Table A2. They must also be reported in the extremely 

low-income category (section 13) in Table A2 to be counted as progress toward meeting the extremely low-income housing need determined pursuant to Government Code 65583(a)(1).

Please note: For the last year of the 5th cycle, Table B will only include units that were permitted during the portion of the year that was in the 5th cycle. For the first year of the 6th 

cycle, Table B will only include units that were permitted since the start of the planning period. Projection Period units are in a separate column.

Please note: The APR form can only display data for one planning period. To view progress for a different planning period, you may login to HCD's online APR system, or contact 

HCD staff at apr@hcd.ca.gov.

Total Units

Progress toward extremely low-income housing need, as determined pursuant to Government Code 65583(a)(1).

Extremely Low-Income Units*

*Extremely low-income houisng need determined pursuant to Government Code 65583(a)(1). Value in Section 5 is default value, assumed to be half of the very low-income RHNA. May be overwritten. 

Moderate
                                     284                          13                                271 

Total RHNA

                               458 

Low
                                     273                          47                                226 

2

Income Level

Very Low
                                     461                            3 

This table is auto-populated once you enter your jurisdiction name and current year data. Past 

year information comes from previous APRs.

Please contact HCD if your data is different than the material supplied here

Table B

Regional Housing Needs Allocation Progress

Permitted Units Issued by Affordability

ATTACHMENT A

I I I I I 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 119 of 137



Jurisdiction San Fernando

Reporting Year 2022 (Jan. 1 - Dec. 31)

1 2 3 4

Name of Program Objective Timeframe in H.E Status of Program Implementation

1. Residential 

Rehabilitation Loan 

Program

Assist 20 households during the 

planning period, subject to available 

funding.

Annually

As the Housing Funds balance continues to grow in residential loan 

repayments/refinancing, the City is considering re-initiating the Rehabilitation 

Loan Program. The City established a Housing Division and hired a Housing 

Coordinator to help re-initiate and implement the the home loan program and 

other affordable housing programs and services. 

2.  Lead Based Paint 

Awareness

Remediate lead cases. Coordinate with 

LA County and Pacoima Beautiful on 

educational programs and identification 

of funding sources.

Annually update contact 
City will provide brochures to prospective building permit applicants in 

compliance with applicable lead based paint abatement procedures.

3. Facilitate Affordable and 

Special Needs Housing 

Development

Coordinate with affordable housing 

developers, offer regulatory 

concessions and incentives, and 

identify new funding sources to facilitate 

production of  new affordable and 

special needs housing units.

Annually information and 

review availability Federal 

and State financing 

subsidies

from 2021-2029.

No additional deed restricted affordable housing was built in 2022.   However, a 

total of 39 accessory dwelling units were issued planning approval with 62% of 

rentals falling within the level of affordability for low-income households 

($1,825/month).  Therefore, the remaining 38% of San Fernando's ADU permits 

have been assigned as moderate income. A rent survey of guesthouses in San 

Fernando and surrounding areas and affordability matrix based on 2022 State 

Income Limits allowed to determine affordability level for new residentila uinits 

approved in October 2021 - December 2022. 

Housing Programs Progress Report  

Describe progress of all programs including local efforts to remove governmental constraints to the maintenance, improvement, and development of housing as identified in the housing element.

ANNUAL ELEMENT PROGRESS REPORT

Housing Element Implementation

Table D

Program Implementation Status pursuant to GC Section 65583

ATTACHMENT A

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 120 of 137



4.  Conservation of 

Existing and Future 

Affordable Units

Monitor the status of the existing and 

future affordable rental stock in San 

Fernando.  Work with property owners, 

interest groups, and the State and 

Federal governments to conserve its 

affordable housing stock.

Annually monitor the 

housing stock and at-risks 

from 2021-2029.

City continues to monitor existing deed restricted affordable units on an annual 

basis.

5. Removal of 

Governmental Constraints

Monitor changes in State and Federal 

laws and revised City policies, programs 

and regulations as necessary and 

appropriate.

Revise the Zoning 

Ordinance within two 

years (June 6, 2024) of 

adoption of the Housing 

Element.

The City will continues to update regulations to streamline approval process. City 

adopted Ordinance No. 1714 for urban lot splits and two-unit development 

projects in single-family residential (R-1) zones pursuant to Senate Bill 9. The 

Odinance is effective 3/9/2023.The City will update provisions for accessory 

dwelling units in 2023 and apply for grant funding to develop objective design 

standards for infill residential development to comply with ministerial approval 

requirement under SB-5.

6. Community 

Development Department 

Expansion

Hire a Housing Coordinator to help re-

establish the multifamily rental 

inspection, homeowner rehabilitation, 

and first time homebuyer programs. 

Ongoing, 2021-2029
City established a Housing Division and hired a Housing Coordinator to develop 

programs for housing needs.   

7. Section 8 Rental 

Subsidies

Coordinate with LA County Community 

Development Commission to expand the 

program. 

12/31/2023

City provides links on its website, City Hall, and other public locations.  The City 

continues to work with LA County Community Development Commission through 

a coorpertive agreement. 

8. Fair Housing

Contract with the FHCSFV, or another 

fair housing provider; disseminate 

brochures; coordinate fair housing 

education with community events.

Annually

City provides links on its website and a list of housing resources at the public 

counter to property owners and renters, including a brochure for the Housing 

Rights Center with offices in San Fernando Valley.   

9. Affirmatively Futhering 

Fair Housing

Promote housing along with supportive 

services to meet the special housing 

needs of seniors,

homeless individuals, and families, and 

the disabled.

Ongoing, 2021-2029
City continues to provide brochures and links on its website, City Hall, and other 

public locations. 

10. Homeownership  

Program

Promote MCC, HOP, and SCHFA 

programs to expand homeownership. 

Annually update County 

program information on 

City website. 

City has prepared and distributed a bi-lingual program flyer and updated the City's 

social media channels with regularly updated resource information. 

ATTACHMENT A

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 121 of 137



11. Adequate Housing 

Opportunity Sites for 

RHNA

Prepare and approve the required 

General Plan Amendments, Zoning 

Changes, and update the

Corridors Specific Plan to allow for the 

development of mixed-use and/or 

residential developments to

accommodate the City’s 2021-2029 

RHNA. In addition, establish and 

implement the Mixed-Use Overlay 

district. 

10/15/2022
City will develop a mixed-use overlay to allow for development of housing in 

commerical corridors to accomoate the City's 2021-2029 RHNA. 

12. By-Right Approval of 

Projects with 20% 

Affordable Units

Comply with AB1397 to further 

incentivize development of housing on 

sites that have been available

over one or more planning period.

12/31/2024

City will draft an Ordinance to amend the Zoning Code to allow by-right approval 

of housing development that includes 20 percent of the units as housing 

affordable to lower income households, on sites being used to meet the 6th cycle 

RHNA that represent a “reuse” of sites previously identified in the 4th and 5th 

cycles Housing Element. 

13. Monitor Residential 

Capacity

Monitor the consumption of residential 

acreage to ensure an adequate inventory 

is available to meet the City’s RHNA 

obligations and the requirements of 

Senate Bill (SB 166).

12/31/2023

City is actively tracking unit count and income/affordability assumed on parcels 

included in the sites inventory, actual units constructed and

income/affordability when parcels are developed, net change in capacity and 

summary of remaining capacity in meeting remaining RHNA.

14. No Net Loss of 

Residential Capacity to 

Accommodate RHNA

Create and maintain opportunity for a 

minimum of 328 units of owner and 

rental housing units

including Accessory Dwelling Units 

(ADUs) for lower-income households to 

be developed over the

eight-year planning period from October 

2021 to October 2029.

12/31/2023 City is developing a process to track unit compliance with SB 166.

15. Replacement Unit 

Program

Require new housing developments to 

replace all affordable housing units lost 

due to new development and comply 

with any applicable relocation benefits 

and assistance for displaced occupants.

12/31/2024

City will work on a policy requiring replacement housing units subject to the 

requirements of Government Code section 65915, subdivision (c)(3) on sites 

identified in the site inventory when a new development (residential, mixed-use, or 

non-residential) occurs on a site that is identified in the inventory. 

ATTACHMENT A

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 122 of 137



16. Lot Consolidation

Encourage lot consolidation of smaller 

parcels to accommodate viable projects 

at a density of at least

35 dwelling units per acre (du/ac) or 

higher.

12/31/2024
City is tracking trends and exploring incentives where appropriate to incentivize 

lot consolidation.

17. Density Bonus

Revise the City Density Bonus 

Ordinance to comply with amendments 

to the State Density Bonus Law and 

include objective design standards and 

incentives for community-focused 

designs in exchange for deviation from 

development standards to facilitate 

development of deed-restricted 

affordable housing units. 

12/31/2024
City is using State Density Bonus legislation and will update the Zoning Code to 

provide incentive for development affordable housing units. 

18. Accessory Dwelling 

Units

Revise the Accessory Dwelling Unit 

regulations to comply with current State 

law and to include

objective design standards to facilitate 

production of ADU. 

10/15/2023

City will update the Accessory Dwelling Units regulations and will  facilitate ADU 

construction by informing eligible property owners of the potential to construct 

ADUs through updated handouts and information on the City’s website.

19. Transitional and 

Supportive Housing

Amend the Zoning Code to clarify where 

transitional and supportive housing 

developments are permitted by rightand 

eliminate parking requirements for 

supportive housing within 0.5 miles of a 

public transit stop by right.

12/31/2023 City is researching and and will amend the Zoning Code. 

20. Low Barrier Navigation 

Centers

Amend the Zoning Code to allow Low 

Barrier Navigation Centers by right in 

areas zoned for mixed use and 

nonresidential zones permitting multi-

family uses and to meet the parking 

requirements set out in AB 139. 

12/31/2024 City is researching and and will amend the Zoning Code. 

21. Employee and 

Farmworker Housing 

Amend the Zoning Code to comply with 

the Employee Housing Act. 
12/31/2024 City is researching and and will amend the Zoning Code. 

ATTACHMENT A

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 123 of 137



22. Efficient Project 

Review Under SB35

Develop and make available on the 

City’s website a SB35 eligibility checklist 

and application form and develop 

objective development standards. 

12/31/2023
City will develop a checklist and application form to assist potential developers 

with SB35 in 2023. 

23. Homeless Plan

Create a Housing Division and hire a 

Housing Coordinator to develop a 

Homeless Plan. 

12/31/2024
City established a Housing Division and hired a Housing Coordinator, and adopted 

a Homeless Plan in Sepember 2022. 

24. City Hall 

Redevelopment Study

Issue RFP for a redevelopment of the 

City Hall property.
12/31/2026

City will release an RFP for a Site Redevelopment Study and potential public-

private partnership for a future mixed-use development that will capitalize on the 

light rail stop that is planned for San Fernando in 2028. 

25. Remove Single-Family 

From Multi-Family Zones 

Amend the Zoning Code to prohibit the 

future development of Single-Family in 

the MultiFamily zones. Currently 

existing Single-Family developments 

will be permitted to remain.

12/31/2024 This will be part of the Zoning Code update in 2024. 

ATTACHMENT A

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 124 of 137



ATTACHMENT A

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 125 of 137



General Comments

ATTACHMENT A

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 126 of 137



Jurisdiction San Fernando

Reporting Year 2022 (Jan. 1 - Dec. 31)

Total Award Amount
Total award amount is auto‐populated based on amounts entered in rows 15‐26.

Task  $ Amount Awarded
$ Cumulative Reimbursement 

Requested

Other 

Funding
Notes

ONLINE PERMIT COUNTER 

SYSTEM
$50,000.00 Other SB 2 Grant

6th Cycle Housing Element $260,000.00 None LEAP &SB 2 Grant

Summary of entitlements, building permits, and certificates of occupancy (auto‐populated from Table A2)

Current Year

Deed Restricted 0

Non-Deed Restricted 1

Deed Restricted 0

Non-Deed Restricted 22

Deed Restricted 0

Non-Deed Restricted 5

10

38

Current Year

Deed Restricted 0

Non-Deed Restricted 3

Deed Restricted 0

Non-Deed Restricted 22

Deed Restricted 0

Non-Deed Restricted 13

11

49

Above Moderate

Total Units

Certificate of Occupancy Issued by Affordability Summary

Building Permits Issued by Affordability Summary

Income Level

Very Low

Low

Moderate

Very Low

Low

Moderate

Above Moderate

Total Units

Completed Entitlement Issued by Affordability Summary

Income Level

Task Status

Completed

In Progress

ANNUAL ELEMENT PROGRESS REPORT
Local Early Action Planning (LEAP) Reporting

(CCR Title 25 §6202)
Please update the status of the proposed uses listed in the entity’s application for funding and the corresponding impact on housing within the region or jurisdiction, as applicable, categorized based on the eligible uses specified in Section 
50515.02 or 50515.03, as applicable.

310,000.00$  

ATTACHMENT A

I 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 127 of 137



Current Year

Deed Restricted 0

Non-Deed Restricted 0

Deed Restricted 0

Non-Deed Restricted 16

Deed Restricted 0

Non-Deed Restricted 2

1

19

Low

Moderate

Above Moderate

Total Units

Income Level

Very Low

ATTACHMENT A

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 128 of 137



March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 129 of 137



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 130 of 137



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-7307                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☐ Finance Director        ☐ Deputy City Manager       ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Celeste T. Rodriguez and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By: Matt Baumgardner, Public Works Director 
   
Date:  March 20, 2023 
 
Subject: Discussion on the Water Fund Balance and Consideration to Adopt a Resolution 

Appropriating Funds from the State of California for Use on Water Treatment 
Projects  

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council:   

a. Review and discuss the Water Fund Balance;  

b. Adopt Resolution No. 8223 (Attachment “A”) appropriating $7,000,000 in funds for use on 
water treatment projects at extraction Well Nos. 2A and 3; and  

c. Provide direction to staff regarding gap funding for the Well Nos. 2A and 3 treatments 
projects. 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 
1. On November 1, 2021, City Council approved a contract with Envirogen Technologies in the 

amount of $1,652,110 to design and install an Ion Exchange nitrate removal system at Well 
3, which has been shut down since November 2009 due to high nitrate levels. 
 

2. On April 13, 2022, the City had to shut down Well 2A before nitrate levels exceeded the 
regulatory limit.  This required the City to begin purchasing water from the Metropolitan 
Water District (MWD) to meet demand. 

 
3. On June 21, 2022, through the adoption of the fiscal year (FY) 2022-2023 budget, the City 

Council approved $1,250,000 from the Water Fund reserve balance to cover the additional 
cost of importing water from the Metropolitan Water District (MWD) through December 
2022 while the Well 3 Ion Exchange nitrate removal treatment system was being completed. 

 

ANill 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 131 of 137



Discussion on the Water Fund Balance and Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Appropriating Funds 
from the State of California for Use on Water Treatment Projects  
Page 2 of 5 
 
 
4. On August 1, 2022, City Council approved a contract with FS Contractors, Inc.  in the amount 

of $400,538 to make site improvements to accommodate the new Well 3 Ion Exchange 
System, bringing the total budget for the Capital Improvement Project (CIP) to $2,052,648. 
 

5. On September 6, 2022, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 8175 appropriating 
$4,200,000 in ARPA funds for use in FY 2022-2023, including $2,000,000 in gap funding for 
water capital projects related to water treatment (i.e. Wells 2A, 3, and 4) and storage (i.e. the 
Upper Reservoir). 

 
6. On February 21, 2023, staff provided a presentation on several mid-year budget adjustments, 

including a discussion of an adjustment needed to cover the cost of importing water from the 
MWD through June 2023, which will exceed the initial $1,250,000 in Water Fund reserve 
balance originally approved by City Council.   

 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
Staff has been working diligently over the last year on the installation of a new Ion Exchange (IX) 
nitrate removal treatment system. This project became particularly critical following the 
shutdown of groundwater extraction Well No. 2A in April 2022 due to elevated nitrate levels in 
the City’s highest producing well. Since that time, staff developed a plan with its water 
engineering consultant (CWE) for modifications required at the Lower Reservoir site to receive 
the new Ion Exchange system; awarded a contract to a contractor (FS Contractors) to build these 
modifications; and worked closely with the State Division of Drinking Water (DDW) to get the 
new treatment system permitted.  
 
As part of the permitting process in December 2022, the DDW required the City to include some 
additional modifications to the piping and valve plans in order to separate and track the different 
incoming streams of untreated water from groundwater extraction Well Nos. 3 and 7A. The 
original plan was to blend the incoming untreated water before they were distributed through 
the two treatment systems. These required modifications lengthened the original timeline from 
completion of the project in December 2022 to a new projected date of June 2023.  As a result, 
there is a need to continue to import water from MWD until the Ion Exchange treatment system 
is permitted and operational. 
 
During the mid-year budget discussion at the City Council meeting on February 21, 2023, staff 
discussed the need to cover the increased cost of importing MWD water based on the new 
projected completion date of June 2023. The projected increase for the additional 6 months of 
importing MWD water is approximately $1,450,0001, for a total amount of $2,700,000.  

                                                 
1 Projection based on an estimated $225,000 per month between January 2023 and June 2023, plus an additional 
$100,000 needed to cover the shortfall between June 2022 and December 2022. 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 132 of 137



Discussion on the Water Fund Balance and Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Appropriating Funds 
from the State of California for Use on Water Treatment Projects  
Page 3 of 5 
 
 
Importing water from MWD to meet customer demand has increased the total cost of the Well 
3 Ion Exchange Project from $2,052,648 to $4,752,648 (i.e. the original CIP cost plus the cost of 
importing MWD water).  The resulting impact on the Water Fund reserve balance is illustrated in 
Table 1 below: 
 
Table 1: 

WATER FUND (070) BUDGET PROJECTED 
Starting Balance (7/1/22) 4,445,023 4,445,023 

Projected FY23 Revenues 5,750,948 5,241,695 
Projected FY 23 Expenditures 10,524,866 11,813,902 

Projected Year-End Balance (7/1/23) ($328,895) ($2,127,184) 
 
The total cost of the Well 3 Ion Exchange Project ($4.75 million) is included in the Projected FY23 
Expenditures line in the table above.  Table 1 shows that, without additional resources, the Water 
Fund will end the current fiscal year with a deficit fund balance, which will create a short-term 
impact on the Water Fund’s ability to meet current expenditures and a long-term impact on 
water rates.  Without additional resources, the rate charged to customers will need to be 
significantly increased to: 1) cover the deficit balance, and 2) re-establish a reserve fund balance.  
A detailed rate study will need to be conducted by an engineering consultant to determine the 
specific impact on rates. 
 
Fortunately, the City is in the position provide additional resources to the Water Fund to decrease 
the impact to rates in the future.  The three funding sources that are immediately available to 
meet current capital expenditures are: 
 

1. $7,000,000 appropriation included in the state’s FY 2023 budget;  
2. $750,000 DWR Grant from LA County Public Works (pending funding agreement); and 
3. $2,000,000 appropriation from ARPA funding that was approved by City Council in 

September 2022 to provide gap funding for water capital projects related to water 
treatment (i.e. Wells 2A, 3, and 4) and storage (i.e. the Upper Reservoir).  

 
State Appropriation and Department of Water Resources Grant. 
In July 2022, the City was notified that a $7,000,000 appropriation2 was included in the state 
Budget for the Well 2A and Well 3 treatment systems.  Additionally, in April 2022, the City was 
notified of a $750,000 grant from DWR through the LA County Department of Public Works for 
the Well 3 treatment system.  Staff is currently working with the State Water Resources Control 
Board to finalize the funding agreements for both awards, which will be presented to City Council 
for approval once they are finalized.   
 

                                                 
2 See Section 19.56, Subsection (e), Paragraph 2, Subparagraph (G) of AB 179.  

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 133 of 137



Discussion on the Water Fund Balance and Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Appropriating Funds 
from the State of California for Use on Water Treatment Projects  
Page 4 of 5 
 
 
The original plan for this funding was to use the $750,000 grant and up to $2,000,000  of the state 
appropriation to fully fund the Well 3 Ion Exchange Project.   The remaining $5,000,000 in state 
appropriation funding would be used to fund the Well 2A Ion Exchange Project, which will move 
forward once the Well 3 Project is completed.  Neither of these funding sources originally 
contemplated additional costs to import MWD water. 
 
The City can move forward with the original funding plan describe above, however, through that 
plan, only $2,750,000 in current expenditures will be reclassified to cover the Well 3 Project.  This 
will eliminate the Water Fund deficit, but leave an insufficient reserve balance as the remaining 
$5,000,000 state appropriation will need to be set aside to fund a future project (i.e. Well 2A 
Treatment system), so it will not be classified as “available fund balance.”  The City will still need 
to increase rates in the future to re-establish a sufficient reserve balance. 
 
Alternately, the City could apply the full cost of the Well 3 Project, including the additional cost 
to import MWD water, to the state appropriation.  This will eliminate the Water Fund deficit and 
re-establish the reserve balance.  However, this will only leave $3,000,000 to fund the future Well 
2A Ion Exchange Project, which represents a significant funding gap of approximately $2,000,000.  
The City will need to seek other funds to complete the Well 2A Ion Exchange Project. 
 
ARPA Funds. 
The original direction from City Council related to the $2,000,000 in ARPA funds set aside as gap 
funding for water capital projects related to water treatment and storage was that these funds 
would only be used if no other grant funding sources were available.   Due to the increased cost 
of importing water for the Well 3 Project, a significant gap now exists for the combined Well 2A 
and Well 3 treatment system projects.   
 
As identified above, the original state appropriation of $7,000,000 was expected to be sufficient 
to fund both the Well 2A and Well 3 Ion Exchange System projects.  The additional $2,700,000 
capital cost to import water during the construction of the Well 3 Project was not originally part 
of the state appropriation because Well 2A was still operational at the time the request to the 
state was made.  Based on the most current information, a estimated $2,000,000 in gap funding 
is needed to move forward with completing the Well 2A and Well 3 Projects.  City Council may 
direct staff to use the ARPA funds toward this gap to keep the construction of the Well 2A 
Treatment system on track without delaying the project to secure other gap funding. 
 
Additional Funding Sources. 
Since April 2022, staff has been exploring additional funding sources to complete treatment 
systems on all of the City’s wells and expanding storage capacity.  Through these efforts, the City 
secured the $7 million state appropriation and a $750,000 grant from DWR.  Staff is currently 
working with DWR to finalize funding agreements and expects to receive those funds over the 
next few months, which makes them available for current expenses, including the Well 3 Project 
and related cost to import MWD water. 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 134 of 137



Discussion on the Water Fund Balance and Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Appropriating Funds 
from the State of California for Use on Water Treatment Projects  
Page 5 of 5 
 
 
Additionally, staff is currently exploring the funding options below.  It should be noted that these 
requests may not be received for several months, if at all, so they are not available to pay current 
expenditures.  If received, the funds may be used to provide gap funding for upcoming water 
projects, such as Well 2A or a new water reservoir. 
 

1. Federal earmark funding request through Congressman Cardenas. 
2. California Water and Wastewater Arrearage Program Grant to cover the additional cost 

of importing MWD water. 
3. State Revolving Loan Program (a loan would require repayment, with interest, which will 

impact customer rates to cover the debt service). 
 
Update on Completion of the Well 3 Ion Exchange System. 
Since the February 21, 2023 City Council meeting, staff has been working closely with the DDW 
to expedite the final permitting process and has received assurances that the permit will be 
turned around  quickly due to the urgency to disconnect from the MWD water supply. Staff has 
also developed a plan in parallel to disconnect from the MWD water supply and produce 
sufficient water from groundwater extraction Well Nos. 4 and 7A to meet the City’s overall water 
demand. This would happen independently of the permitting of the new ion exchange treatment 
system and allow the City to disconnect from MWD imported water by mid-April.  
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
The increased need to import water from MWD due to the extended timeline of the IX treatment 
system along with a projected reduction in water revenues will result in a net negative balance 
at the end of the FY 2022-2023, as shown in the previous table. 
 
 
CONCLUSION:  
 
Staff is recommending that the City Council review and discuss the Water Fund Balance; adopt 
Resolution No. 8223 (Attachment “A”) appropriating $7,000,000 in funds for use on water 
treatment projects at extraction Well Nos. 2A and 3; and provide direction to staff regarding gap 
funding for the Well Nos. 2A and 3 treatments projects. 

 
ATTACHMENT: 
 
A. Resolution No. 8223  

 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 135 of 137



ATTACHMENT “A” 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 8223 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, 
CALIFORNIA, AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023 
ADOPTED ON JUNE 21, 2022 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Council has received and considered the proposed adjustment to 
the budget for Fiscal Year 2022-2023, commencing July 1, 2022, and ending June 30, 2023; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is necessary to amend the revenues 
and expenditures of the current City budget to cover costs related to the importation of water 
from the Metropolitan Water District, as well as future costs related to water treatment of 
groundwater from City-owned extraction wells, as further described in the Agenda Report and 
its attachments (the “Report”), dated March 20, 2023; and 
 

WHEREAS, an annual budget for the City of San Fernando for the Fiscal Year beginning 
July 1, 2022 and ending June 30, 2023, a copy of which is on file in the City Clerk's Office, has 
been adopted on June 21, 2022. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, DOES HEREBY 
RESOLVE, FIND, DETERMINE AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1.  The following adjustment is made to the City Budget: 
  

Increase in Revenues     $7,000,000 
 010-3686-0857 
 
Increase in Expenditures    $7,000,000 

  010-384-0857-4600      2,000,000 
  010-385-0857-4600       5,000,000 
 

SECTION 2.  The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this resolution and shall cause 
a certified resolution to be filed in the Office of the City Clerk. 

 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED THIS 20th day of March, 2023. 

 
 
ATTEST:             

Celeste T. Rodriguez, Mayor of the City of 
San Fernando, California 

      
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 136 of 137



RES. NO. 8223 

2 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 

I, City Clerk of the City of San Fernando, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing is 
a full, true, and correct copy of Resolution No. 8223, which was regularly introduced and adopted 
by the City Council of the City of San Fernando, California, at a regular meeting thereof held on 
the 20th day of March 2023, by the following vote of the City Council: 
 
 

AYES:  
  

NAYS:  
 

ABSENT:  
 

ABSTAINED: 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the 
City of San Fernando, California, this _____ day of March 2023.  
 
 
 

  
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

 
 

March 20, 2023 CC Meeting

Page 137 of 137


	0-03-20-23 CC-S Agenda
	01-03-20-23 CC&SA Agenda
	1-Minutes 1a-1f
	1a. 06-07-21 CC&SA Minutes
	1b. 06-21-21 CC&SA Minutes
	1c. 02-22-22 CC&SA Minutes
	1d. 03-21-22 CC&SA Minutes
	1e. 03-06-23 CC-S Minutes
	1f. 03-06-23 CC&SA Minutes

	2-FIN_City Warrant (3-20-23) COMBINED
	FIN_City Warrant (3-20-23) AR & ATT A
	FIN_City Warrant (3-20-23) ATT A EXH A

	3-PD_Approve OES Designation of Authorized Agent for Disaster Assistance (03-20-2023) COMBINED
	PD_Approve OES Designation of Authorized Agent for Disaster Assistance (03-20-2023) AR
	Form OES-FPD-130

	4-PW_Public Hearing Section 5130 Grant (3-20-23) COMBINED
	PW_Public Hearing Section 5130 Grant (3-20-23) AR
	PW_Public Hearing Section 5310 Grant (3-20-23) ATT A
	PW_Public Hearing Section 5310 Grant (3-20-23) ATT B
	PW_Public Hearing Section 5310 Grant (3-20-23) ATT B
	PH Notice for 5310 Grant Application (2-16-2023) (Legal Ad)-L13155
	PH Notice for 5310 Grant Application (2-23-2023) (Legal Ad)-L13160


	5-CD_Housing Element Annual Progress Report (3-20-23) COMBINED
	CD_Housing Element Annual Progress Report (3-20-23) AR
	CD_Housing Element Annual Progress Report (3-20-23) ATT A
	CD_Housing Element Annual Progress Report (3-13-23) Att A_1
	CD_Housing Element Annual Progress Report (3-13-23) Att A_Summary
	CD_Housing Element Annual Progress Report (3-13-23) Att A_Table A
	CD_Housing Element Annual Progress Report (3-13-23) Att A_Table A2a
	CD_Housing Element Annual Progress Report (3-13-23) Att A_Table A2b
	CD_Housing Element Annual Progress Report (3-13-23) Att A_Table A2c
	CD_Housing Element Annual Progress Report (3-13-23) Att A_Table B
	CD_Housing Element Annual Progress Report (3-13-23) Att A_Table D
	CD_Housing Element Annual Progress Report (3-13-23) Att A_Table LEAP


	6-PW_Discussion on Use of Water Funds (3-20-23) COMBINED
	PW_Discussion on Use of Water Funds (3-20-23) AR
	PW_Discussion on Use of Water Funds (3-20-23) ATT A




